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Pnonztr & S,q.xnnRSoN
Profess ional As s ociation/Certifi ed Public Acc ountants

tq3 North Main Stree

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of the Board of Selectmen and Town Manager
Town of Salem
Salem, New Hampshire

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, discretely
presented component unit, each major governmental and proprietary fund, and aggregate remaining fund information of the

Town of Salem as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position
of the govemmental activities, business-type activities, discretely presented component unit, each major govemmental and

proprietary fund, and aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Salem, as of December 3 I , 2021 , and the respective
changes in financial position, where applicable cash flows thereof, and, the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the

standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the

United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described inthe Auditor's Responsibilitiesfor the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Town of Salem and to meet our other

ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Town of Salem's management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in
the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Town of Salem's ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the
date that the financial statements are issued or when applicable, twelve months beyond the financial statement date including any

currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor's Responsibilitiesfor the Audit of the Financiul Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or effor, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a
high level ofassurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a

material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based

on the financial statements.

I



Town of Solent
I n rl epen d enl A ud itor's Report

In perfornring an ar,rdit in accordance l,vith gcnerally accepted auditing standards, we:

e Exercise prof-essional .ludgment and nraintain professional skepticisrn throughout the audit.

r Identify and assess the risks of rnaterial nrisstaternent of the flnancial stateurents, whether due to fraud or error. and

design and perfonn audit procedures responsive to those risl<s. Such procedures include exarrining, on a test basis,

evidence regarding the amounts ancl disclosures in the financial staterxents.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in ordel to design audit procedLrres that are appropriate
in the circunlstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Salern's
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

r Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the leasonableness of significant accounting estitnates
rrade by managelxent, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

. Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial
doubt about the Town of Salen's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to comrnunicate with those charged with governance legarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information- Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that
the following be presented to supplement the basic financial statelxents:

. Management's Discussion and Analysis,

. Schedule of the Town's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability,

. Schedule of Town Contributions - Pensions,

. Schedule of the Town's Proportionate Shale of the Net Other Postemployment Benefits Liability,
o Schedule of Town Contributions - Other Posternployment Benefits (NHRS Plan),
. Schedule of Changes in the Town's Net Other Postemployment Benefits Liability and Related Ratios,
r Schedule of Town Contributions Other Postemployment Benefits (Retiree Health Benefit Plan); and
o Notes to the Required Supplernentary Infbrmation

Such information, although not a parl of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards

Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied cefiain limited procedures to the required supplernentary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Atrerica, which consisted of
inquiries of nranagement about the rnethods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the

basic financial staternents. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information - Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forrning opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Town of Salern's basic financial staten.rents. The cornbining and individual fund schedules are

presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Unifonn Aclminislrcttitte Recluiremenls, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirentents for Federal
Awards and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund schedules and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are the responsibility of
management and were derived fi'om and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such inforrrration has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including cornparing and reconciling such infonnation directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statelnents or to the basic financial staternents thenrselves, and

other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Arnerica. In our

opinion, the cornbining and individual fund schedules and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are fairly stated, in

all rnaterial respects, in relation to the basic financial statelnents as a whole.
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Town of Salem
Independent Auditor's Report

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 14, 2022 on our

consideration of the Town of Salem's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the

scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town of Salem's internal control over financial reporting
and compliance.

Si%(rr ftt aA

December 14,2022
Concord, New Hampshire

PLODZIK& SANDERSON
Professional Association
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
As of and For the Yeur Ended December 31,2021

Town of Salem, New Hampshire

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Within this section of the Town of Salem, New Hampshire (the Town) annual financial report, the Town's management is

pleased to provide this narrative discussion and analysis of the financial activities of the Town for the calendar year ending
December 31,2021. The Town's financial performance is discussed andanalyzed within the context of the accompanying

financial statements and disclosures following this section.

Financial Highlights

The Town's assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded its liabilities and defemed inflows of resources by

$62,875,907 (net position) for the calendar year reported, This is a change of $4,378,007 in comparison to the prior
year, as restated. Of that amount at December 31,2021, $(55,906,181) is considered unrestricted (unrestricted net

position), a change of $7 ,287,466 in comparison to the prior year, The three main factors for this change include the

change for the other postemployment benefits (OPEB) liability, the change in the net pension liability, and two long
term debt issuances in202l. Unrestricted net position may be used to meet the govemment's ongoing obligations to

citizens and creditors. The unrestricted net position of the Town's govemmental activities was $(55,906,181), a

change of $2,989,844 in comparison to the prior year. The unrestricted net position of business-type activities was

$0, a change of $4,297 ,622 in comparison to the prior year.

The total cost of all Town services for calendar year 2021was $63,316,565, as compared to $62,208,595 the prior
year, an increase of $1,107,970 or 2%o. Of the total cost of services, $55,056,291 was spent on govemmental
activities (compared to $56,139,900 in the prior year) and an additional $8,260,274 was spent on business-type

activities consisting of the water and sewer funds (compared to $6,068,695 in the prior year).

a

a

a

a

a

a

At December 31,2021, the Town's govemmental funds reported a combined ending balance of $3 1,259,800, a

change of $4,287,678 in comparison to prior year, as restated. The Town's business-type activities reported a

combined ending fund balance of $39,91 1,592, a change of $1,290,635 in comparison to the prior year.

At the end of calendar year 2021, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $13,950,873, a change of
$2,312,246 in comparison to the prior year,

Total long-term debt (bonds and notes payable) at the close ofthe fiscal year 2021 was $15,721,403, a change of
$8,754,261in comparison to the prior year. The Town issued three long term bonds/loans in fiscal year 2021.

Overall, the Town continues to maintain a strong financial position.

The above financial highlights are explained in more detail in the "financial analysis" section of this document.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This Management Discussion and Analysis document introduces the Town's basic financial statements. The basic financial
statements include: (1) govemment-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, (3) notes to the basic financial
statements, and (4) required supplementary information. The Town also includes in this report additional information to

supplement the basic financial statements.

The Town of Salem, NH reports a component unit, the Salem Council on Aging, Inc (SCOA). The SCOA is both a non-
profit organization and a Salem Board of Selectmen appointed board that serves as an advisory board to the Salem Senior

Services. The SCOA aims to identiff the needs of the community's elderly population and available resources to meet such

needs; to educate the community atlarge in the needs of the elderly; to design, promote and implement needed services; and

to coordinate with existing local services for the elderly.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
As ofsnd For the Year Ended December 31,2021

Town of Salem, New Hampshire

Government-wide Financ id Stutemenls

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Town of Salem, New

Hampshire's finances in a manner similar to a private sector business. These statements provide both long-term and short-

term information about the Town's overall financial status. Financial reporting at this level uses a perspective similar to that

found in the private sector with its basis in accrual accounting and elimination or reclassification of activities between funds.

The first of the government-wide statements isthe Statement of Net Position which presents information that includes all of
the Town's asseis, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported

as net position, Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial

position of the Town as a whole is improving or deteriorating. Evaluation of the overall health of the Town would extend to

other nonfinancial factors such as diversification of the taxpayer base or the condition of Town infrastructure, in addition to

the financial information provided in this report.

The second government-wide statement is the Statement of Activities, which reports how the Town's net position changed

during the current calendar year. All current year revenues and expenditures are included regardless of the timing of cash

flows. An important purpose of the design of the statement of activities is to show the financial reliance of the Town's

distinct activities or functions on revenues provided by the Town's taxpayers.

The government-wide financial statements have separate columns for government activities and business-type activities.

Governmental activities include general administration, public safety, highways and streets, sanitation, health, welfare,

culture and recreation, and conservation. Property taxes, motor vehicle permit fees, federal, state, and other local revenues

finance these activities.

Business-type activities include water and sewer operations. User fees charged to the customer receiving these services

primarily finance these activities.

The government-wide financial statements are presented on pages 12-13 of this report.

Fund Finsncial Statements

A fund is an accountability unit used to maintain control over resources segregated for specific activities or objectives. The

Town uses funds to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related laws and regulations. Within the basic financial

statements, fund financial statements focus on the Town's most significant funds rather than the Town as a whole' Major

funds are separately reported while all others are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for

nonmajor funds is provided in the form of combining statements in a later section of this report.

All of the funds of the Town can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

In addition the Town reports a component unit, the Salem Council on Aging, Inc.

Governmentat funds are repofted in the fund financial statements and are used to account for essentially the same functions

reported as govemmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide

financial staiements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of expendable

resources. These statements report short-term calendar accountability focusing on the use of spendable resources and

balances ofspendable resources available at the end ofthe year. They are useful in evaluating annual financing requirements

of governmental programs and the commitment of spendable resources for the near-term.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to

compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in

the government-wide financial statements. These two perspectives may provide insight into the long-term impact of short-

tenrifinancing decisions. The financial statements contain a reconciliation between the government-wide and fund financial

statements to assist in understanding the differences between these two perspectives.

The basic governmental fund financial statements are presented on pages 14-17 of this report.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) Town of Salem, New Hampshire
As ofand For the Yeur Ended December 31,2021

Individual fund information for nonmajor governmental funds is found in the combining statements in a later section of the

annual financial report.

The Town's proprietaryfunds are the sewer fund and water fund. Proprietary funds focus on business-type activities and

services that mirror similar activities in the private sector. The revenues from proprietary funds come primarily from user

fees. Proprietary funds provide the same information as the govemment-wide business type activities, only in more detail.

The Town's fiduciary funds are private purpose trust funds, Other Post Employment Benefits Trust Fund, and custodial

funds. Fiduciary funds are used for those resources that are held for third parties and are not available for governmental use.

The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to the Basic Finsncial Statements

The accompanying notes to the financial statements provide information essential to a full understanding of the government-

wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements begin on page 24 of this report.

Required Supplementary Information

This management's discussion and analysis and the schedule of the Town's proportionate share of net pension liability,
schedule of the town's contributions - pensions, schedule of the Town's proportionate share of the net other postemployment

benefits liability, schedule of the Town's contributions - other postemployment benefits, schedule of changes in the Town's

net other postemployment benefits liability and related ratios, and schedule of Town contributions other postemployment

benefits are presented as required supplementary information and begins on page 58.

O t h er S up p lemenlary Info r mati o n

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain supplementary

information conceming the Town's budget presentations for the general fund. Also, combining and individual schedules for

nonmajor funds, and custodial funds are presented in this section of this report beginning on page 66.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
,,ls of'rrrttl For the Yeur Eniled Decentber 31, 202 I

Torvn ol'Salenr, Nerv Halnpshire

nrent-Wide Financial A

Sumnrnry of Net Position

Governnrent.l

rrctiyities

Busincss-t1'pe

activities Tolrl

202t 2020 (restllted) 202t 2020 (restntcd) 202t 2020 (restated)

Asets and defened outllou's:

Cunent and other assets

Capital assets

Detened outllorvs

65.t91,992

83.067,800

22.800,219

3 1,089,878 $

82,211,964

23,09t,927

13,260,15t S

44,984,639

222.141

| 3.809.438 S

46.4i8.8 r4

i00.i7i

44.899.3 r6

t28,656,118

23.392,300

78.458.74i S

r 28.052.439

23.022.126

Total assets and defened outflous r71,066,071 t36,399,169 58,467,537 60.548.625 229.53i.608 | 96,948,394

Liabilities and defen'ed inflou,s:

Cun'ent liabilities

Noncunent liabilities

Deferred inflorvs

33,038,7i8

98,035,866

ll ,027,112

2,7t6,10t

108,58 1,970

5,224,t55

2,136,i I6

11,552,62t

4,867,008

r2.9r 8.425

4,255,8? r

4,153.312

35, I 75.094

109,588.487

21,894.t20

15,635,t26

I I 2,83i,84 I

9,911,521

Total liabilities and deferred inflows 148,101,i56 n6,522,826 I 8,555,945 2l 921.668 r66,657.70r 138,450,494

Net position:

Net investrnent in capital asets

Restlicted

Unrestricted

Total net position

11,5t1 ,656

1,352,840

(55,906, l8l)

$ 22,964,3t5

11,527,829

1,245,139

(58,896,025)

33,20i,050

6,104,542

42.918,519

(4,291,622)

|0,724,706 120,446,408

8,057,382 1,245,139

(55,906, r8r) (63,r93,647)

$ 19,876,941 $ 39,91 1,592 $ 38,620,95i $ 62,815,907 $ 58,497,900

The largest portion of the Town's total net position (176% of total net position) reflects its investrnent in capital assets (e.g.,

land, buildings, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still
outstanding. The Town uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; therefore, these assets are not available for
future spending. Although the Town's investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the

resources to repay debt must be provided from other sources, since capital assets thernselves cannot be used to liquidate these

liabilities.

An additional portion of the Town's net position (13% of total net position) represents resources that are subject to
restrictions on how they may be used placed by parties external to the Town. Finally, unrestricted net position of
$(55,906,181) ((89%) of total net position) may be used to meet the governrnent's ongoing obligations to citizens and

creditors. The negative net position is largely due to the irnplementation of GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions, and GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postentployntent

Benefits. GASB Statement No. 68 requires the Town to repoft its proportionate share of the New Hampshire Retirement

System's net pension liability based upon its plan contributions for the year. As of Decernber 31,2021 the Town's share of
this liability was $40.7 million. The New Hampshire Retirernent System has a statutory funding schedule in which the goal

is to reach 100% plan funding by June 30,2039. GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployntent Benefits details the recognition and disclosure requirements for state and local employers for
posternployrrent benefits other than pensions. Additionally, the Town had an OPEB liability of $50.2 million as of
Decernber 31,2021. The Town expects that its deficit in unrestricted net position will continue to increase for the foreseeable

future until a rnechanism to fund its OPEB obligation is in place.

At the end of the calendar year, the Town reported increases in net position for the government-wide activities, business-type

activities, and total net position. The Town's total net position changed by $4,378,007 during the current calendar year.

Governmental activities net position increased by $3,087,372 or l5%o during calendar year 2021 . Major colxponents of the

increases were l) the Town's share of the net pension liability,2) the Town's OPEB liability and 3) the addition of capital

assets. Business-type activities increased by $ I ,290,63 5 or 3o/o during the calendar year.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) Town of Salem, New Hampshire
As of and For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

The following condensed financial information was derived from the government-wide statement of net position. It reflects

how the Town's net position has changed during calendar year 2021.

The following table provides a summary of the Town's changes in net position:
Summary of Changes in Net Position

Governmental Busines-type
activities Total

2021 2021 2020 (as restated) 2020 (as r€stxted)

Revenues:

Program:

Charges for sewices
Operating grants and contributions

Capital grants and contributions
Geneml:

Property taxes

Motor vehicle pennits

Other

Total revenues

Prograrn expenses:

General govemment
Public safety

Highways and streets

Sanitation
Water distribution and treatment
Health
Welfare
Culture and recrpatior/conseryation
Intercst on long-term debt

Total expenses

Change in net position before translers

Contributions to pennanent firnd principal

Contributions to OPEB
Property donation
Principal forgiveness
Trmsfe rs

Total change in net position

Net position - beginning ofyer (as restated)

(see note 22)
Net position - end ofyear

4,'7s8,t49 $
2,919,8s8
3,3 14,050

4,49s,t6t $
4,1 35,6 1 0

532,449

8,4'17,948 $

I,236,6t9
8,01 1,164 $

9,122,541
t3,236,097
4,t56,477
3,3 I 4,050

32,765,896
'1,233,488

6,689,534

67.395.s42

t2,506,32s
13,858,151

s32,449

32,2t5,37s
7 ,145,920
6.tt3.763

32,765,896
7,233,488
6.58s,366

32,215,375
'7,t4sp20
6 tdq 14') 1 04.1 68

54.673.857 9,8 I 8,735

(35.5?9)

17,698.126 72,3'7t,98357.576,807

8,948,405
28,333,872
t4,199,0t6
I,150,290

9,9t9,578
30,7A4,47 |
I 3, I 55,303

1,198,064 4,264,377
3,995,897

|,623,61s
3,064,481

8,948,405

28,333,872
t4,t99,0t6
5,4t4,66'l
3,995,89',1

24,689
232,706

2,002,810

I 64,503

9,9t9,5'18
30,704,47 |
I 3, I 55,303

2,82t,679
3,064,48 I

68,s53
2n,2tl

2,t96,857
66 491

24,689
232,706

2,002,810
t64.503

68,553

2n,2tl
2,t96,857

66.49',1

55,056,291 57 5?0 S34 8.260.274 4,688,096 63,316,565

4,078,977

62.208.630

2.s20.516 (2,846,677\ 1.558.46 I 13.010.030 0 r61 15i

1,560
(30,000)

69,494
525,802

4,810
(50,000)

1,130,000

60,000

1,560
(50,000)

4,810
(50,000)

I,130,000
60,000

(20,000)

277,976
(525.802)

t.290.635
38,620,957

(564.645)
347,4'70

3.087,372

564,645
(t,t37,222) 12,445.385 4,378,007

26,t7s,572 58,49'1,900

I 1,308,163

47 .189.7372t,014,t65

s 22.964.315 $ t9,8'16,943 $ I sq? $ 38.620.957 $ 62.875,907 _$_-___rqi2499_

Governmental Funds Financial Analvsis

The focus of the Town's governmental funds is to provide information on near-terrn inflows, outflows, and balances of
spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Town's financing requirements. In particular, unassigned

fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a govemment's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal

year.

At the end of the calend ar year, the Town's governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of $31,259,800, an

increase of $4,287,678 or 16yo in comparison with the prior year. This increase was primarily due to the general fund and the

capital project funds revenues exceeding their respective funds expenditures.

Governmentul Fund - Generul Fund

The general fund is the Town's chief operating fund and the largest source of day-to-day service delivery. At the end of the

calendar year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $ 13,950 ,873, a change of $2,312,246 from the prior year.

Total Unassigned fund balance is available for spending at the government's discretion. As a measure of the general fund's

liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total general fund expenditures.

8



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) Town of Salem, New Hampshire
As ofund For the Yeur Ended December 31,2021

General Fund t2t3u202t 1213112020

Unassigned fund balance 13,950,873 11,638,627 2,312,246

Total fund balance 23,083,905 21,014,745 2,069,160

% of Total General

Change FundExpenditures

3t%

5t%

The remainder of the fund balance is nonspendable, restricted, committed, or assigned to indicate that is not available for new

spending because it has already been committed to liquidate contracts and purchase orders of the prior period; continued

appropriations for capital outlay and improvement purposes; non-expendable permanent fund balances; and other pulposes

restricted by statue. The general fund's total fund balance was $23,083,905.

Budgetary Highlights

The Generul Funct - The operating budget was not amended in total appropriations during calendar year202l, however

modifications were made to the allocation of appropriations, The 2021 btdget was set to utilize $2,179,265 of unassigned

fund balance to offset authorized expenditures. There was $54,997 of amortized bond premium that was applied as use of
fund balance. Actual expenditures and transfers out were 52,384,11 I lower than budgeted expenditures. Actual revenues

including transfers and bond proceeds in were $3,340,380 higher than budgeted amounts. All of these resulted in a net

positive variance to the budget of $5,724,491.

Most functional areas of revenues exceeded the budgeted amount except for intergovernmental revenues and miscellaneous

revenues. Intergovernmental revenues report $67,037 less than the budgeted amount. Miscellaneous revenues reported

$178,399 less than the budgeted amount. This is mainly due to a reimbursement being budgeted for an expenditure that did

not occur in 2021 . Taxes exceeded their budgeted amount by $1,481 ,222 this is due to interest on taxes exceeding the budget

due to a lower collection rate in the prior year and actual taxes exceeding the budgeted amount. Licenses and permits

exceeded their budget by $1,536,048. This was largely due to motor vehicle fees collected were greater than what was

anticipated. There was (and continues to be) a considerable amount of development which has translated into more

residents/vehicles.

There was a one functional area in which the actual expenditures exceeded the budgeted amounts. Sanitation exceeded its

budget due the COVID-19 pandemic. The Town continued to experience greater than usual tonnage during 2021 because of
residents working from home and cleaning out their houses. Overall, the Town expended 95Yo of the 2021 appropriated

budget which is greater when comparedto 93o/o in2020,

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets - Governmental Activities & Business Type Activities

The Town's investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, for governmental activities as well as business type

activities as of December 31, 2027, was $128,052,439, a change of $(604,339) from the prior year. This decrease is

primarily due to reconstructing roads for less than they were previously constructed. The investment in capital assets

includes land, intangible assets, buildings, improvements, infrastructure, equipment and vehicles.

Governmental Business-tYPe

A.ctivities Activities Total

2020 2021 2020 2021

$ 17,289,686 $ 17 ,3s2,s42 $

2021

Land and land improvements

Intangible assets

Construction in progress

Buildings and building improvements

Machinery, equipment, and furnishings

Infrastructure

Total

$ 17,639,686

1,07 I ,000

16,694,225

6,140,676

7,148,069

79.358.783

$ t7,702,s42

1,071,000

21,992,820

6,458,996

7,5t7,016

73,914,404

3,633,413

3,226,6s9

5,lL2,154

3.460,020

5,314,590

57,471,411

350,000

1,071,000

I 3,060,8 l2
2,914,017

2,035,915

25,552,89s

3s0,000

1,071,000

21,992,820

2,998,976

2,202,426

16,442,993

$

53,805.888

$ 83,067,800 $ 83,s98,563 $ $ 45,0s8,215 $ 128,0s2,439 $ 128,6s6,778
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
As of uwl For the Yeur Ended December 31,2021

Town of Salem, New Hampshire

At December 31,2021, the depreciable capital assets for the Town were 67Yo depreciated which is l%o lower in comparison

to the prior year. This comparison indicates that the Town is replacing depreciable capital assets at a slightly greater rate than

they are depreciating.

Major capital asset events during the current year included the following:

Capital asset additions

Infrastructure

South Broadway sewer pipe replacement

South Broadway water pipe replacement

Road Reconstruction - Manor Pky

Road Reconstruction - Old Farm Rd

Road Reconstruction - Lemay Dr

Road Reconstruction - Twinrbook Ave

Mill and overlay - Shannon Rd

West Duston Rd Water Pipe

West Duston Rd Sewer Pipe

Mill and overlay - Colleen Dr

Construction in Process

Depot Reconstruction

SNHRW Water Main and PRV Stations

s 6,920,283

2,876,604

755,790

632,8t'7

5 14,04 I

3'14,'.l85

503,302

304,892

264,610

127,883

$ 2,753,643

864,879

Additional information of the Town's capital assets can be found in Note 9 to the financial statements.

Long-lerm Debt

At December 31,2021 the Town had total bonds and notes outstanding of $15,721,403. Of this amount, $4,276,360 was

govemmental activities debt and 511,445,043 was business-type debt. During fiscal year 2021 the Town issue two SRF

loans with the State of New Hampshire and one bond. One loan was for replacing a 100 year old water main with anew 12"

diameter ductile iron water main. Another loan was for replacing failing infrastructure along a 1.6 mile segment of a major

road. This project installed a 24" diameter sewer interceptor and replaced an undersized box culvert. The new culvert is

more than double the size of the old box culvert. The bond was for financing water and sewer improvements to the Town's

West Duson Road neighborhood. A summary of outstanding debt as of December 31,2027, was as follows:

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Total

202 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Bridge construction
Land acquisition
Drinking water capacity rights
South Broadway inliastructure
Water main improvements

Water system improvements

West Duston improvements
Total

$ 642,000

2,260,000
I 20,000

t,254,360

903,000 $

2,545,000

I 60,000

642,000 $

2,260,000
600,000

8.866.654

923,000

I,249,749

l, I 80,000

903,000

2,545,000

800,000

t,217,000

|,502,142

$ $ $

480,000

7,612,294

923,000

1,249,749

I, I 80,000

640,000

I,2t7 ,000
1,502,142

$ $ 3,608,000 $ I 1,44s,043 $ 3.3s9.142 $ ts,72t,403 $ 6,967,142
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
As ofsnd For the Year Ended December 3I' 2021

Town of Salem, New Hampshire

Total long-term bonds and notes outstanding at December 31,2021 increased by 58,754,261 or l25oh from December 31,

2020 due to three new debt issuance in202l. The Town's bonds are rated AAA by Standard & Poor. Additional information

on the Town's long-term debt can be found in Note 16 to the financial statements.

Economic Factors and Current Conditions

In fiscal year 2022 the Town voted to use $5 million in unassigned fund balance to offset the tax rate. It is expected that the

Town's unassigned fund balance in the general fund will intentionally decrease in2022. There were many open positions

throughout fiscal year 2022 so the impact to unassigned fund balance may not be as large as originally planned.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town's finances, comply with finance-related laws and

regulations, and demonstrate the Town's commitment to public accountability. If you have questions about this report or

would like to request additional information, contact the Town's Finance Director at 33 Geremonty Drive, Salem, NH 03079.
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EXHIBIT,l
I-OIVN OI; SALEIV, NElv IL,ttt4PSHIRE

Stotenuttt o.f' N ct Posi ti ott

Decetnber -1 I, 2021

Conrponenl Unil

G ovcrnrlcnt al

Act iv it ie s

IlLrsiness-ty pc

Act ivit ies

s 57.726.i1i9

92t.264
3.025.5 80

1.39(r.499

$ 7,522. r 80

449,3t3
4.594"63t

692,557

2,070

r4,48r,8r2
30,502,827

$ 65,248,769

92t,264

3,025,580

r,845,812

4,594,631

2,399,099

265,564

158,024

Salcm Cor.rncil

on Aging Inc.

$ 708.710

9.',lt4

Total

ASS ETS

Casli and cash ecprivalents

Invest lrents
Taxes rcceivatrles (net)

Account receivables (net)

Sp ecial assessments

I ntergovernmental receivable

Prepaid iterns

Tax deeded property. sub.iect to resale

Cap ital assets:

Larrd and construction itt prtlg'ess

Other capital assets, net of dcpreciation

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFI-OWS OF RESOURCES

Amounts related to pensiotts

Amounts related to other postemploynrent benellts

Total deferred outf'lows of resources

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Accrued salaries and benefits

Contracts payable

Retainage payable

Accrued interest payable

Intergovernmental payable

Other

Long-term liabilities :

Due within one year

Due in more than one y ear

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFTOWS OF RESOURCF,S

Unavailable revenue - propet'ty taxes

Unavailable revenue - grants

Unavailable revenue - special assessments

Unavailable revenue - received in advance

Amounts related to pensions

Amounts related to other postemployrnent benelits

Total defen'ed inflows of resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets

Restricted

I Jnrestricted

Total net position

t48,265.792 58,245,390 206,5n,t82

t.706.542

263.494

I 58.024

17.503.324

6s.564.476

3 t,985,136

96,067,303

718,424

8,056,3 r4

t4,7 43,965

150,123

72,024

8,206,437

r 4,8 15,989

22,800.279 222,t47 23,022,426

2.521,020

530,700

t4,671

86,922

63,3 3 0

28,50 r ,708
38,904

2,942,310

553,450

14,671

r 86,867

20"t,075

28,508,61 0

38,904

t,281,523

98,035,866

421,290

22,',150

99,945

143,745

6,902

1,44t,684
11,552,621

2,723,207

109,588,487

500

't31.0'74,644 13,688,937 144,763,581 500

I t4,t97
r,559,405

35.498

r 3,558, r 96

r,759,816

4,s94,631

10,694

252,64'7

9,036

1t4,197

1,559,405

4,594,631

46,192

I 3,8 I 0,843

1,768,852

17.02'7.1t2 4,867,008 2t,894,120

77,5t7,6s6
t,352.840

(55,906,r8r)

33,207,050

6,704,542

110,724,706

8,057,382
(55,906,1 8 r )

717,924

$ 22.964.3t5 S 39pr,592 $ 62,875,907 S 717,924

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements al'e an integral part of tlris statelnent.
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EXHIBIT B
TOI.YN OF SALEM, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Stutement of Adivities
For the Fiscal Year Endetl December 3 1, 2021

Progam Revenues Net (Epense) Revenue and

Change in Net Position Corlponent Uni

$
a
(D

z.
o
(!

o

o

lJ

o
11

A)

()
6'
a
(D

uQ

D-o
!J

='
(D

UA

!J

-
o

a'

(D

3

Gove rnmcntal activitics:
General government

Puhlic saf-ety

Highrvays and streets

Sanitat ion

H ealth

Welfnre

CultLrre zurd recreation

Corrservation

Iuterest on long-terni deht

Total governmental activit ies

llus i n css-typc lctivitics:
Water

Selver

Total business-ty pe activities
Total

Component unit:
Salerr Council on Aging $ 9,325 $ 394 $

Charges

for
Services

$ 458,739

3,69i,808

525,084

7 i)i
73. I 93

4,437,951

4,039,997

Operating

Grants and

Contributions

Cap ital

Graiits and

Contribut ions

Governmental

Activities
Business+y pe

Activities

1.678,673

(224,3 80)

1,454,293

(39 r ,736)
495,904

104,168

(20,000)

2'77,916

(525,802)

Salem Council

on Aging Inc.Expenses

$ 8,948,405

28,333,872

14,199,016

I , I 50,290

24,689

23?.,706

1,93 1,846

70,964

I 64,50i

3,995,897

4"264,31'7

Total

$ (8"489,666)

(24.417,990)

(e.34 1,025)

(62s,206)

(24,689)

(22-5.itt I )

(704.8 r 0)

( 70,964)

( l 64,50i)
(44,064,234)

1,678,673

(224,3U0)

t,454,293

46,688,9 r 8

t,560
(50,000)

347,470

))) o'74

l.-543,94 t

l, I 53,843

1,236,619

3,3 14,050

$ (8,489,666) $

(24,417,990)

(9,34 r,025)
(62s.206)

(24,689)

(225,38 r )

(704,8 r 0)

(70,964)

( r 64,503)

46,584,'750

1,560

(3o,oo0)

69.494

525,802

$

$

$

55,056,291 4.758,149 2,919,858 3,3 14,050 (44,064,234)

8,260,2'74 8,477,948 |,236,6t9
$63,316,565 $ 13,236,097 S 4,1s6,477 $ 14,050 (44,064,234) 1 ,454,293 (42,609"94 | )

General revenues:

Tares:

Property

Other

M otor vehicle permit fees

Licenses and other fees

Grants and contributions not restricted to specific progams

Unrestricted investment eamings

M iscellaneous

Total general revenues

Contributions to permanent funds

Contributions to OPEB trust

Principal forgivness

Trans fers

Total general revenues, contributions, and transfers

Change in net position
Net position, beginning as restated (see Note 22)

Net position, ending

32,765,896

381 ,368
'7,233,488

2,246,875

2,389,823

202,515

1,364,785

32,765,896

38 1,368

7,233,488

2,246,875

2,389,823

(189,221)

1,860,689

(8.93 l)

1.07-5

I12,462

i li,-ii7

47 .tst ,606 ( 163,658) 46,987,948

3,087,372 1,290,635 4"378,007

19,876,943 38,620,957 58,497,900

r r3,5i7
I 04.606

613,3r8

$22,964,31s $ 39,911,592 $62,875,907 S 717.924



EXH]BIT C-I
.TOIYN 

OF SALET,I, NEI,Y IIAMPSI-IIRE
Govcmnrcntul Funds

Bultnce Sheet

Decenfier-11,2021

C eneral

Cap ital

Pro.jects

Other

Govelnmental

Funds

'lotal

Govelntlcntal
Funds

AS S ETS

Cash ancl caslr ccyt"rivalents

I nvesl lrent s

Receivables. net of allorvance lirl uncollectitrle:

Taxes

Accounts

lntergovernmental receivable

lnterfund receivable

Voluntary tax liens

Voluntary tax liens reserved until collected

Prepaid items

Tar deeded property. sub.iect to resale

Restricted assets:

Cash and cash ccluivalents

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Accrued salaries and benefits

Contracts payable

Retainage payable

Intergovernnrent al p ay able

Interf'und payable

Other

Total liabilities

DBFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue - Propelty taxes

Unavailable revenue - received in advance

Bond premiums

Unavailable revenue - grants

Total deferred inflows of resources

FUND BAI,ANCES
Nonspendable

Restricted

Cornrnitted

Assigned

Unassigred

Total fund balances

Total liabilit ies. def-elred inflows
ofresources. and f'und balarrces

3. r r 8,987

t.029,493

14.676

l. r 66,808

r 03,869
( r 03,869)

263,494

ts8,024

3.1 r8.987

I,396,499

t,706,542
2,067.436

r 03,869

( r 03,869)

263,494

158,024

$44.703,r r0
149.726

$ $ 8,799,940

771.538

367,006

40.312

$ 53,503.050

92t.264

1,651,554

900,628

4,223,539 4,223,539

!t54,827,8s7 $2,5s2,182 $ 9,978J96 $ 67,358,835

s t,432,4s8
507,254

14,671

28,50 1,708

470,688

38,904

$ 1,067,218 S

86,922

$ 2,521,020

530,700

14,6'.t 1

86,922

28,50 t,708

2,067,436

38,904

2t,344
23,446

r, t35,35 I 461,397

30,965,683 2,289,491 506,187 33,761,361

702,253

3 5,498

40,518

I,559,405

702,253

35,498

40,5 r 8

r,559,405

778,269 1,559,405 2,337,674

421,518

62,229

3,51 8,910

5, I 30,375

l 3,950,873

262,691

534,307

8 I 8,533

6,s60,364

955,825

I,143,453

10,079,274

5, r 30,375

r 3,950,873

23,083,905 262,691 7,913,204 3l,259,800

$ 54,827,857 52,ss2,182 S 9,978,796 $ 67,358,835

The Notes to the Basic Financial Staterrents are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C-2

TOH/N OF SALEII|, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Reconcilintiott o.f the Bulunce Sheel - Goventnrcntnl Funds to tlte Stolenrcnl of Net Position

Decenilser 31 , 202 I

Amounts rcported lir| governrncnlal activitics in lhe Stateurent olNet
Position ale dil'1'elent becausc:

$ 3 r.259.800'lotal lirnd balances of sovcrrtmcntal lirncls (Exhibit C-l)

Capital asscts usecl in goverrrnrental activities are not current financial resources.

therelbre. are uot reportecl in the govcrnn-renlal l'unds.

Cost

l.ess accrrnrulatcd dcpleciation

Diff'erences betrveen expected and actual experiences. assumption changes and net differences

between pro.iected and actual earnings ancl contributions subsequent to the measurement

date fbl the post-retilerncnt benefits (pension and OPEB) al'e recognized as deferred

outflows of lesources and deferred inllor'vs olresources on the Statement of Net Position.

Deferred outflorvs ofresources related to pensions

Deferred inflorvs ofresources related to pensions

Del'erred outf'lorvs of resources related to OPEB

Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB

Interfund receivables and payables betrveen governmental funds are

eliminated on the Statement of Net Position.

Receivables

Payables

Property taxes not collected within 60 days offiscal year-end are not available to pay for
culrent period expenditures, and theretbre are deferred in the governmental funds.

Deferred property taxes

A llorvance for uncollectible taxes

Other long-terrn itenrs are not available to pay for current period expenditures,

and therefbre, are reported as deferred inllorvs ofresources in the governmental funds.

Interest on long-ternr debt is not accrued in governmental funds.

Accrued interest pay able

Longterm liabilities that are not clue and payable in the current period,

therefore, are not repolted in the governrnental f'unds.

Bonds

Unamortized bond premium

Cap ital leases

Compensated absences

Accrued landfill postclosure care costs

Net pension liability
Other p ostemp Ioy nrent benefits

Net position of governmental activities (Exhibit A)

s 262,882,446
(179,8t4,646)

$ 8,056,314

(r3,5s8,r96)
14,743,965

( 1,7s9,8 r 6)

$ (2,067,436)

2,067,436

588,056

(e3,407)

83.067.800

7.482.267

494,649

40,518

(63,330)

(99,317,389)

$

$ 4,276,360

332,296

941 ,488
3,508,854

474,000

39,963,814

49,820,577

s22,964.315

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBlT C-3

TOWN OF SALEM, NEIY HA]VIPSHIRE

Goventntnlol Futttls

Stotenteilt of Revcnues, E.rpendilures, und Chtnges itt Fund Balnncas

For the Fiscol Yenr Ertderl December31, 2021

General

Cap ital

Pro.jects

Other

Covcrnrlcnlal

Funds

-l-otal

(i ove rnr.ncnt al

Fr-rncls

REVENUES

Tzrxes

Licenses and permits

I nt ergovernrnent al

Charges lbr selvices

M iscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURBS

Current:

General government

Public saI'ety

Highrvays and streets

Sanitation

Health

Welfare

Culture and recreation

Conservation

Debt service:

Principal

Interest

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency ) of revenues

over (under) exp enditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in

Transfers out

Bond proceeds

Capital lease

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances (deficit), beginning as restated (see Note 22)

Fund balances, ending

50,409,253 3,056,527 4.455.209 s7.920.989

$ 33,488,5 r r

9,461,613

3,04r,8I9
3,037,660

1,379,650

$ $ 1.900 $ 33.490.4 r r

9.46t .613

6.755.308

4.867.93 5

3,345.722

3,056,527 656.962

t,830,27 5

1,966,072

8,401,643

26,058,793

3,952,152

1,133,462

24,689

237,242

1,924,402

8.9 r2-893

28.fi3.t92
8"245,076

t.133.462

24.689

237.242

2,047 -500

12,234

4,292,924

5l 1.250

2,054,399

123,098

12,234

678,427

194,283

2,904,103

678,42'7

194.283

6,904,2333,561,603 438,527

45,509,196 7,8s4,s27 3,139,508 56,503.231

4,900,0s7 (4,798,000) 1,3r5,70r t,4t'7.758

61 8,095

(4,406,829)

957,837

s,19s,047

1,416,281

(910,5 r r )

5.8t3,t42
(5,3t7,340)

1.416.281

95'7.837

(2,830,897) 6,611,328 (910,51r) 2.869,920

2,069,160

21,014,7 45

I ,8 I 3,328

( r,550,637)

405, r 90

7,508,01 4

4.287.678

26"972,t22

$23,083,905 $ 262,691 $7,913,204 $3r.259.800

TheNotes to the Basic Financial Staternents are an integral parr of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C-4

TOWN OF SALEM, NEW HAIIIPSIIIRE
Reconciliuliott of the Slrilenrcnl of Revenues, Expendilurvs, uttrl

Ch an ges i n Fu n d Bnl nnces - G ovent nrcttlttl Fu n ils to lh e Slotenrcn t of A cti vi ti es

Forthe Fiscol Yenr Euded Decen$er-11, 2021

n trot-lllts repo|ted lor goYernnrental actiVities in the Statement of Activities
are clil'l'erent because:

Nct change in lirncl balances olgovernmental iunds (Exhibit C-3)

Governntental lirnds lepolt capital outlays as expenditures. rvhile governntental

activities report clepreciation expense to allocate those expenditures ovel the lil'e of
the assets. Capital outla)/ expenditul'es exceeded depreciation expense in the

current year. as lbllows:
Cap italized cap ital outlay

Depreciation expense

The net eff'ect ofvarious nriscellaneous transactions involving capital assets

(i.e.. sales and donations) is to decrease net position.

Transfers in and out between governmental funds are eliminated

on the Statement of Activities.
Transi'els in

Transf'ers out

Revenue in the Statement of Activities that does not provide current financial

resources are not reported as revenue in the governmental funds.

Change in deferled tax revenue

Change in allowance for uncollectible taxes

Bond and other debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds,

but issuingdebt increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.

Rep ay ment of bond and other debt p rincip al is an exp enditures in the governmental

funds, but repayment reduces long-terrn liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.

Proceeds of debt

Inception of capital leases

Repayment of bond principal

Repayment of capital leases

Amortization of bond premium

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the

use ofcurrent financial l'esources, and therefore, are not reported as expenditures in

governmental funds.

Increase in accrued interest expense

Decrease in compensated absences payable

Decease in accrued landfill postclosure care costs

Net change in net pension liability, and deferred

outflorvs and inflorvs of resources related to pensions

Net change in net other postemployment benefits liability and def'erred

outflows and inflows of resources related to other postemployment benefits

Change in net position of governnental activities (Exhibit B)

$ 8,707.733

(8,655, r 29)

$(5,287.340)
5,287.340

$ (377,600)

34,978

$(r,4r6,28r)
(9s7,837)
'147,921

7t t.190
39,079

$ (e,2ee)

255,057

6,000

2,447,t90

$ 4.287.6711

52,604

(583,367)

(342,622)

(87 s,928)

549,007

(2,149,941)

The Notes to the Basic Financial Staternents are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT D
TOWN OF SALEM, NEIY HAMPSHIRE

Slotenrcnt of Revenues, E-rpendilures, nnd Chnnges in Futttl Bulrtnce

Budget ond Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetnry Bxsis)

Generol Fund
For the Fiscol Yenr Etrderl Decenber 31, 202 1

Original

and Final

Budget

Variance

I)os it ive

(N egat ive)

REVENUES

Taxes

Licenses and perrrits

I nt ergovelnment al

Charges lbr services

M iscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Culrent:

Genelal govelnrnent

Public salety

Highrvays and streets

Sanitation

I-l ealth

Welfare

Culture and recreation

Debt service:

Princip al

Int erest

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over exp enditures

oTHER FTNANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in

Transfers out

Bond proceeds

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Increase in nonspendable fund balance

Decrease in restricted fund balance

lncrease in committed fund balance

Unassigned fund balance, beginning

Unassigred fund balance, ending

Actual

$ 33, r 45.889

9.46 r.6 r3

3.04 r.8 r9

3,037.660

t.214.t96
46,550,590 49.901.177 3.350.587

$ 31,664,667

7,925,s6s

3, I 08,856

2,458,907

1,392,595

s t.481 .222
1.536.048

(6't,03't)

578,753

( r 78.399)

8, r 95,528

27,120,021

4,115,144

1,037,3 I 8

I 0l ,005
281,149

2,286,101

8,052.401

2s,885,449

3,84r.r9r
I,t32,594

24.689

237,242

1,921 ,t40

143,t27

1.234.572

273,953
(95,276)

76,316

43"907

364,961

708,500

266,766

1,485,948

678,427

194,283

1,245,953

30,073

72,483

239,995

45,597,480 43,2t3.369 2,384,111

953,110 6,687,808 5,',734,698

553,302
(3,760,677)

75,000

6 r 8,095

(3,760,677)

64,793

(75,000)

(3,132,37s) (3,142,582) (10,207)

s (2,17e,265) s 5,724,4913,s4s,226

( r 85,445)

20,743

(r,4r0,900)

12,475.898

s 14,445,522

The Notes to the Basic Financial Staternents are an integral part of this statelnent
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EXI!IBIT E-I
TOIYN OF SALEtr,I, NEIY I]AIIIPSIIIRE

Pt'ttPielunt Funds
Sloterrtetrl of Net Positiou

Decenilter -11 , 2021

BLrsiness-t1 p c Act ivit ics

E,ntclp lisc lrrrrrcls

Water Seu'er'

'l-otal

Irnterprisc Funds

AS S ETS

Cash ancl cash equivalents

Receivables. net of allorvance lbr r"rncollectible:

Accounts

Special assessments

I ntergovernmental

Welfale liens

Welfare liens reserved until collected

Prcp aid itenrs

Cap ital assets:

Land and construction in progress

Other capital assets, net ofdepreciation
Total assets

DBFERRED OUTFT,OWS OF RES OURCtrS
Anrounts related to pensions

Amounts related to other postemployment benefits

Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued salaries and benefits

Retainage payable

Accrued interest payable

Int ergovernmental

Long term liabilities:

Due within one year

Due in more than one y ear

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFI,OWS OF RES OURCES

Unavailable revenue - special assessments

Unavailable revenue - prepaid rents

Arnounls related to pensions

Amounts related to other postemployment benefits

Total deferred inflows of resources

NBT POSITION
Net investment in capital assets

Restricted

l-otal net position

$ 3,520,r45 $4.002.035 $ 7.522.r80

255.43t
t.883,722

692"557

2,0'70

r4,48r,8r2
I 9, r 03.030

l93,tltt2

2.7 10.909

449.3t3

4.594.63 r

692.55'7

15,340

( r 5.340)

2,070

r 5.340

( r 5.340)

I t.391).79'7

r4.48 r,812

30.502.82',1

39,938,767 18.30(r.623 58,245"390

r33,93 r

70,098

16,t92
t.926

150,r23

72,024

204,029 Itt.l t8

336.357

5.478,419

222,147

401,268

t9,'783

93,87'7

s7,022

1,105,32',7

6,074,202

)o o))
2.967

6,068

86,723

6.902

42t,290
)) 750

99,945

143,745

6,902

I ,441,684
n,552,621

7,751,479 5,937,458 r 3.688.937

1,883,722

10,694

225,397

8,71 5

2,7 t0,909

27 -250

321

4,594,631

10,694

2s2,647

9,036

2,128,528 2.738.480 4.867,008

27,537,283

2;725,506

5.669.'767

3.979.036

33.207,050

6,704.s42

s30,262,789 $ 9,648.803 $ 39,9r r,592

The Notes to the Basic Financial Staternents are an integlal part of this statelnent
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EXHIBIT E-2
TOWN OF SAI,EM, NEW HAX,IPSITIRE

ProPrielnn' Futtds

Slrnenent of Revenues, Expenses, nnd Chnnges in Net Position

For the Fiscul Yenr Euded Decenbcr 3l, 2021

Bus incss-t c Activilies
Enterprise Funds

Water: Se,r.e,

Total
linterprise Fr.rnds

Op erat ing revenues:

User charges

Other sales

Fees and interest

M iscellaneous

Total op erating revenues

Operating expenses:

Salaries and wages

Operation and maintenance

Contlactual services

Materials and supplies

Depreciation and amorlization

Total operating expenses

Op erating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenue (exp ense):

Intergovernmental revenues

Interest income

Interest expense

Other

Total nonop erating levenues (exp ense)

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers out

Principal forgivness

Total other financing sources (uses)

Change in net position

Net position, beginning as restated (see Note 22)

Net position, ending

$ 3.t72.339
t.158.937

t6.3 I I

90.364

$ 2.n76,889

1.t49.997

t3.033

78

$ 6.049,228

2.308.934

29,344

90,442

4.437.951 4.039.99'7 8.4'77,948

r.208.093

l,l 12.530

848.946

t02.ts9
724.t69

I,454,787

t,428,490
4.205,088

r I 2,550

r,059,359

246.694

3 r 5,960

3,356,t42
r0.39 r

335, r 90

3,99s,897 4.264.377 8,260,274

442.054 (224.380) 217,674

t,236,619
3,3 t5

( r 5 r,904)

169,20s

2,704
(245,85 r )

326,699

t,236,619

6,01 9

(397,7ss)

49s,904

t,257 .23s 83,552 1,340,78'7

(286,722) (25e,080)

277.976

(545,802)

277,976

(286.722) I 8,896 (267,826)

I,412,567

28,850,222

(12t.932)

9,'170,735

t,290,63s
38,620,957

s30,262,789 S9,648,803 S 39,91t,592

The Notes to the Basic Financial Staternents are an integral part of this statelnent.
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EXHII}]'I'E-.J
TOIVN OF SALEtul, NEll' I'ltlllIPSHIRE

Ptt\trielun' Futttls
Slolenunl o./ Cnsh I'-lov,s

For lhc Fiscul Yenr Errrled Decen$cr -J 1, 202 I

Busincss-t1' p c z\ct ivit ies

I ;rrl clp lisc lirrrrtls

\\ialer Seu er

Total

Entcrp lisc Funds

Cash flows frorn operating activities:
Receipts ll'om customels ancl users

Payments to enrployees fbr salaries and benefits

Payments to suppliers

Net casl.r provided by (used lbr) operating activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Bond proceeds received

Principal paid on capital debt

Acquisition and construction of capital assets

Principal paid on bond anticipation notes

Bond issuance costs

Interest paid on capital debt

Net cash used by (used for) capital and related financing act ivitiL's

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Intergovernmental grant s received

Operating transfers out

Net cash used by (used for) non-capital financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning

Cash and cash equivalents, ending

Op erat ing income (loss)

Ad-justments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net

cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation expense

Decrease in other receivables

(lncrease)/Decrease in p rep aid items

Decrease in deferred outflows of resonrces

Increase in accounts payable

Increase in accrued salaries and benellts

Decrease in defelred inflorvs ofresources

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by (Lrsed lbr) operatingactivities

$4.061. l0l
( r.28 r.987)

(2.287.395)

$ 3.785. r 24 $

(37 5.652)

(3.6e6.345)

7.846,225

( r.6s7.639)

(5.983,740)

49t.7 t9 (286.873) 204.846

3.56 r.594

(ee4.705)

(2.658.022)

(750.000)

( r6.487)

( r 55.28 r)

6.245.676

(237.670)

(4.767.732)

(850,000)

( r 7"3 r5)

(r4r,8r3)

9,807,270

(1,232,375)

(7,425,154)

( r.600,000)

(33,802)

(297,094)

(l.012,90r) 231,t46 (78 r,7s5)

s44,062

(286,722)

6,902

(2s9,080)

550,964

(545,802)

257,340 (2s2,178) 5,162

3.3r5 2.704 6,019

(260.s27)

3.',780.672

(305,20 r )

4,307,236

(56s;728)

8,087,908

$3,520,145 $4,002,035 $ 7,s22,180

Reconciliatiott of Operoting Income (Loss) to Nel Cnsh Provided (Used) by Opernting Activities

s 442,0s4 $ (224,380) $ 217,674

335, I 90

(2s4,873)

(380)

(e,860)

(13.472)

(2,879)

(1t6.219)

724,t69

(r46,99r)
1.450

(68.366)

(225.210)

(5,528)

(229.8s9)

1,059,359

(40 r,864)

1,070

(78,226)

(238,682)

(8,407)

(346,078)

49.665 (62.493) ( r 2.828)

$ 491.7 t9 $ (286.{t73) $ 204,846

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT F-I
TOWN OF SALEM, NE'V HAMPSH]RE

Fitlucinq, Funds
Sldenrcnt of Fidr.tciorlt Net Positiou

Decenber3l,202l

Private

Purp ose

l'rust Funds

Other

Postemployment

Trust Fund

Ail
Custodial

Funds

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Intergovernmental receivable

Total assets

LIABILITMS
Intergovernment al p ay ables

School

Due to others

Total liabilities

s 79.974

1.930.425

297

t04,t2l
$ 3,024,603

28,444,875

$

2.010,399 r 04,418 31.469.478

28,444,875

t9,250
t9,250 28,444,875

NETPOSITION
Restricted $r,991.149 $ ro+,+r8 $ 3,024,603

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral pan of this staternent
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EXHIBIT F-2
TOWN OF SALEM, NEIY HAMPSHIRE

Firluciutf, Funds
Stote,rrcnt of Chnnges in Firlucin4, Net Position

For the Fiscnl Ycar Ettded December.1 1, 202 1

l) tival e

Purp ose
'J'rust Iruncls

Other

Post enrp lo), ment
'llust Fund

Ail
Custoclial

Irunds

ADDITIONS
Contributions

lnvestment ealnings

Motor vehicle registration f'ees

Change in fair market value

Tax collections for other 
-qovernments

Other

Total additions

DEDUCTIONS
Benefits paid

Administrative exp enses

Payments of taxes to other governn'lents

Payments of motor vehicle ltes to State

Payments for escrow pul'poses

Total deductions

Net increase (decrease) in fiduciary net position

Net p osition, beginning

Net position, ending sr,99r,r49 $ r04,4r8 $3,024,603

$$

28.990

252.t40

50.000

6.35 8

(t.'13'7)

335

t.999,634

69,t96,662

703,415

$

28 1.1 30

23"t83
4.3 t0

54.621 71,900,046

203

69,602,007

1,999,634

318,674

27,493

253,637

I,737 ,512

203 7l,920,315

54,418

50,000

(20,269)

3,044,872

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral palt of this statement.
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TOWN OF SALEM, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 3],2021

NOTE I _ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Town of Salem, New Harrpshile (the Town), have been prepared in conforrrity with U.S.
Generally Accepted Accor.rnting Principles (GAAP) for governnrental units as presclibed by the Governrnental AccoLrnting
Standards Board (GASB) and other authoritative sources.

The rnore significant of the Town's accounting policies are described below.

1-A Reporting Entitlt

TheTownofSalemisarrunicipal corporationgovernedbyanelectedfive-mernberBoardofSelectrnenandTownManager. ln
evaluating how to define the Town for financial leporting purposes, managelnent has considered all potential component units.
The decision to include a potential cor.lrponent unit in the repofting entity is rnade by applying the criteria set forth by the GASB.

Cornponent units are legally sepalate organizatiorrs for which the Town is financially accountable. The Town is financially
accountable for an organization if the Town appoints a voting rnajolity of the organizations governing board, and (l) the Town is
able to significantly influence the prograr.ns or serves perfonned or provided by the organizations; or (2) the Town is legally
entitled to or can otherwise access the organizations resources; (3) the Town is legally obligated or otherwise assumed the
responsibility to finance the deficits or provide financial support to the organization; or (4) the Town is obligated for the debt of
the organization. Based on the foregoing criteria, the Salem Council on Aging Inc. is included as a discretely presented
component unit in the Town's financial reporting entity.

Discretely Presented Component Unit - The Salern Council on Aging Inc. (the SCOA) is a non-profit organization focused on
providing services to the senior citizens of Salern, New Hampshire; to promote, develop and reinforce prograrns which support
and enhance the health, well-being, dignity and independence of senior citizens; to provide services in the areas of education,
nutrition, health counseling; recreation, volunteer/job opporlunities for senior citizens; to cooperate with and play an active role
with other public and private agencies that provide physical, economical, psychological and social services for senior citizens.

l-B Bosis of Accounling nnd Meosurement Focus

The accounts of the Town are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The
operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as

appropriate. Governmental resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which
they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.

Governntenl-wide Financiul Slalemenls - The Town's government-wide financial statements include a Statement of Net
Position and a Staternent of Activities. These statements present summaries of governmental and business-type activities forthe
Town accornpanied by a total column, and the component unit. Fiduciary activities of the Town are not included in these
statements.

These statements are presented on an "econornic resources" measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
Accordingly, all of the Town's assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, including
capital assets and long-terrn liabilities, are included in the accornpanying Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Activities
presents changes in net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are

earned while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incured, regardless of the tirning of related cash
flows. The types oftransactions reported as program revenues forthe Town are reported in three categories: l) charges for
services, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions.

Certain eliminations have been rnade to interfund activities, payables, and receivables. All internal balances in the Statement of
Net Position have been elirninated, except those representing balances between the governmental activities and the business-type
activities, which are presented as internal balances and elirrinated in the total primary government colurnn.
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TOWN OF SALEM, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR TIIE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 3T,2021

Governntenlal Furttl Finunciul Slulentenls lnclude a balance sheet and a Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Chan-s,es

in FLrnd Balances fbr all rla.lor govenrmental funds and nonrrrajor funds aggregated. An accompanying statement is presented to

reconcile and explain the differences in fund balarrces and changes in f'und balances as presented in these staternents to the net

position and changes in net position plesented in the governrnent-wide financial staterxents. The Town has presented all rna.ior

funds that rnet those qualifications.

Goverrrrnerrtal fund financial statenrents are reported using the current.financial resource.r Ileasurement fbcus and the modi/ied
accrual basis of accot-rnting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measulable and available. Revenues are

considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereaftel to pay liabilities of the

current peliod. For this purpose, the Town generally considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of
the end of the current fiscal period, with the exception of reimbursement-based grants, which use a period of one yeat'. Property

taxes, licenses and penrrits, intergovernrnental revenue, and intelest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to

be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the pofiion of special

assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current
period. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other
grant requirements have been rnet. All other revenue iterns are considered to be tneasurable and available only when cash is
received by the government.

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service

expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when

payment is due.

The Town reports the following rnajor governmental funds:

General Fund - is the Town's primary operating fund. The general fund accounts for all financial resources except those
required to be accounted for in another fund. The primary revenue sources include property taxes, State grants and motor
vehicle permit fees. The primary expenditures are for genelal government, public safety, highways and streets, sanitation,
culture and recreation, debt service and capital outlay. Under GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type DeJinitions, guidance the expendable trust funds are consolidated in the general fund.

Capital Projects Fund - the capital projects fund accor.rnts for the activity pertaining to the construction/renovation of
Town owned property reported in the governmental activities.

Additionally, the Town reports the following fund types:

Special Revenue Funds - are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally lestricted to
expenditures for specifi ed purposes.

Permanent Funds - are held in the custody of the Trustees of Trust Funds and are used to account for resources held in
trust for use by the Town. These can include legal trusts for which the interest on the corpus provides funds for the Town's
cemetery operations.

All the governmental funds not meeting the cliteria established for major funds are presented in the other govemmental colurnn

of the fund financial statelnents. The Town repofts eleven nonnrajor governmental funds.

Proprielury Futtd Financial Stutemenls - Include a Staternent of Net Position, a Statenrent of Revenues, Expenses, and

Changes in Net Position, and a Staternent of Cash Flows for each major proprietary fund.

Proprietary funds are reported using the "economic resources" rneasurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.

Accordingly, all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities (whether culrent or noncurrent), and deferred inflows of
resources are included on the Statement of Net Position. The Staternent of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
presents increases (r'evenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are

recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is irrcurred,

regardless of the tinring of related cash flows.

Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those revenues that are generated fi'orn the primary operations of the fund. All
other revenues are reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses that are essential to the primary
operations ofthe fund. All other expenses are repofied as non-operating expenses.
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The Town reports the following major proprietary funds:

Water Fund - accounts for the activities related to the operation of the water treatment plant, wells, and water system

which includes water supplied by the Sothern New Hampshire Regional Water Line.

Sewer Fund - accounts for the activities related to the operation of the Town's pumping stations, sewer lines, and sewage

flow which is sent to the Greater Lawrence Sanitary District.

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statemenls - Include a Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and a Statement of Changes in Fiduciary

Net Posiiion. The Town's fiduciary funds are a private purpose trust, an OPEB trust, and custodial funds, which are custodial in

nature. These funds are accounted for on a spending or "economic resources" measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting as are the proprietary funds explained above.

The Town reports the following fiduciary funds:

Private Purpose Trust Fund - are used to report trust arrangements, other than pension and investment trusts, under which

principal and income benefit individuals, private organizations, or other governments.

OPEB Trust Fund - Is used to report the trust arrangement for other postemployment benefits under which the principal

and income are used to pay for other postemployment benefits.

Custodial Fund - are custodial in nature and do not belong to the primary government. A custodial fund is used to account

for assets held on behalf of outside parties, including other govemments'

I-C Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Town considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents'

Deposits with financial institutions consist primarily of demand deposits, and savings accounts. A cash pool is maintained that is

uuuilubl" for use by all funds. Each fund's poftion of this pool is reflected on the combined financial statements under the

caption "cash and cash equivalents."

The treasurer is required to deposit such moneys in solvent banks in state or the Public Deposit Investment Pool pursuant to New

Hampshire RSA 343;22. Funds may be deposited in banks outside of the State if such banks pledge and deliver to a third party

custodial bank or the Federal Reserve Bank, collateral security for such deposits, United States government or government

agency obligations or obligations to the State of New Hampshire in value at least equal to the amount of the deposit in each case.

L-D Restricted Assets

Certain Town assets are classified as restricted assets because their use is restricted by statutory limitation, and/or they are

earmarked for a specific purposes.

L-E Statement of Cash Flows

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Town considers all highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with

a maturity when purchased of three months or less and all local govemment investment pools to be cash equivalents.

I-F Investments

State statutes place certain limitations on the nature of deposits and investments available as follows:

New Hampshire law authorizes the Town to invest in the following type of obligations:
. Obligations of the United States government,
. The public deposit investment pool established pursuant to RSA 383:22,
. Savings bank deposits,
. Certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements of banks incorporated under the laws of the State of New

Hampshire or in banks recognized by the State treasurer.
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Any person u,ho directly or indirectly receives any such funds or rxoneys for deposit or for investrrent in securities of any kind
shall, prior to acceptance of such funds, rnake available at the time of such deposit or investurent an option to have such funds
secured by collateral having a value at least equal to the arnount of such funds. Such collateral shall be segregated fol the
exclLrsive benefit of the Town. Only securities defined by the bank cornrnissioner as provided by rules adopted pursuant to
RSA 386:57 slrall be eligible to be pledged as collateral.

Fair Value Measurements of lnvestments - In accordance with GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value A4easurentent and
Application, except for investments measured using net asset value (NAV) as a practical expedient to estirrate fair value, the
Town categorizes the fair value measul'ements of its investments within the fair value hierarchy established by US GAAP. The
fair value hierarchy categorizes the inputs to valuation techniques used for fail value rreasurement into three levels as follows:

Level I - Inputs reflect quoted prices (unadjusted) in active rnarkets for identical assets or liabilities that the Town has

the ability to access at the measurement date. Directly held marketable equity securities would be exarnples of Level
I investrnents.

Level 2 - Inputs are other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets or liabilities, either directly or
indirectly, including inputs in markets that are not considered to be active. Because they most often are priced on the
basis of transactions involving similar but not identical securities or do not trade with sufficient fi'equency, certain
directly held fixed incorne securities are categorized in Level 2. All of the Town's holdings in U.S. governlxent
obligations, and corporate bonds would be examples of Level 2 investments.

Level 3 - Inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level I inputs and the lowest priority to Level 3 inputs. In cefiain instances
where the determination of the fair value measurement is based on inputs from different levels of the fair value hierarchy, is the
level in the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Investments
ale reported at fair value. If an investment is held directly by the Town and an active market with quoted prices exists, such as

for dourestic equity securities, the market price of an identical security is used to report fair value and is classified in Level 1.

Corporate fixed income securities and certain governmental securities utilize pricing that rnay involve estimation using sirnilar
securities or trade dates and are classified in Level 2. Fair values for shares in registered mutual funds and exchange-traded
funds are based on published share prices and classified in Level l.

In determining fair value, the Town utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minirnize the
use ofunobservable inputs to the extent possible.

1-G Receivobles

Receivables recorded in the financial statements represent amounts due to the Town at December 31. They are aggregated into a

single accounts receivable (net of allowance for uncollectibles) line for cefiain funds and aggregated columns. They consist
plirnarily oftaxes, billing for charges, and other user fees.

l-H Prepnid ltems

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items. The
nonspendable fund balance at the govelnrnental fund level includes the amount of prepaid iterns at year-end to indicate that
portion ofthe governmental fund balance that is nonspendable.

l-I CrtpitnlAssets

Capital assets include property, plant, and equipment, infi'astructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similal items),
and intangible assets (i.e., easernents) which are reporled in the applicable governmental or business-type activities colurnns in
the government-wide financial statements. The accounting and reporting treatrnent applied to capital assets associated with a

fund are deterrnined by the fund's measurernent focus. Genelal capital assets are assets of the Town as a whole. When
purchased, such assets are recorded as expenditures in a governmental fund and capitalized as assets in the government-wide
Statelnent of Net Position. Capital assets of the proprietary fund are capitalized in the fund and the cost basis for proprietary
firnd capital assets is the sarne as that used for general capital assets.
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Capital assets are defined by the Town as assets with an initial, individual cost of r.nore than $25,000 and an estimated r-rsei'ul life
in ercess of five years, with the exception of police cruisers, which are capitalized regardless of cost and are assigned a three
year usefirl life. Such assets are carried at historical cost or estirnated historical cost. When the cost of the capital assets cannot
be determined frorr available lecords, estimated historical cost is used. Donated capital assets received on or prior to June 15,

2015 ale recorded at their estirnated fair value at the date of donation. Donated capital assets received after June 15,2015 are

recorded at acquisition value.

The costs of normal rnaintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. lnrprovernents are capitalized and

depreciated over the rernaining useful lives ofthe related fixed assets, as applicable.

Capital assets of the Town are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estirnated useful lives:

Years

Capital Asset Classes:

Land improvements

Buildings and building implovements

M achinery, equiprnent, and furnishings

Infrastructure

20-40
45-50
3-45
l0-50

I -J Interfund Activities

Interfund activities are repofied as follows

Interfirtrrl Receivubles ond Payables - Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end ofthe fiscal year are referred to as "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current portion ofinterfund loans).
All other outstanding balances between funds are repofted as "due to/from other funds." Any residual balances outstanding
between the governrnental activities and business activities are reported in the governrnent-wide financial statements as "internal
balances." Interfund receivables and payables between funds are eliminated in the Statement of Net Position.

Interfund Transfers - Interfund transfers represent flows of assets without equivalent flows of assets in return and without a

requirernent for repayrrent. In governmental funds, transfers are reported as other financing uses in the funds making the

transfers and other financing sources in the funds receiving the transfers. In proprietary funds, transfers are reported after
nonoperating revenues and expenses. In the government-wide financial statelnents, all interfund transfers between individual
governmental funds have been eliminated.

1-K Property Ttxes

Property tax billings occur semi-annually and are based on the assessed inventory values as ofApril 1 ofeach year in accordance
with RSA 76'.15-a, Semi-Annual Collection of Taxes in certain Towns and Cities. 'V/arrants for the year were issued on May 19,

2021 and Novernber 5,2021 , and due on July 3,2021 and December 20,2021. Interest accrues at a rate of 8% on bills
outstanding after the due date and 14oh on tax liens outstanding. The Town placed a lien on all outstanding taxes fi'om 2020 on

April 12,2021.

ln connection with the setting of the tax rate, Town officials with the approval of the Departrnent of Revenue Adrninistration,
establislr and raise through taxation an amount for tax abaternent and refunds, known as overlay. This amount is reported as a

reduction in tax revenue and is adjusted by managernent for any reserve for uncollectable at year-end. The property taxes

collected by the Town include taxes levied for the State of New Hampshire, Salem School District, and Rockingham County,
which are rernitted to these entities as required by law.

The Town net assessed valuation as of April 1,2021 utilized in the setting of the tax rate was as follows:

Total assessnrent valuation with utilities $ 6,461.830.390

Total assessment valuation rvithoul utilities $ 6.341.557.590
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The tax rates and amounts assessed for the year ended December 31, 2021 were as follows:

Per $1,000 Property

of Assessed Taxes

Valuation Assessed

Municipal portion

School portion:

State of New Hampshire

Local

County portion

Total

$5.23 S 33,867,343

$1.63

$8.3 8

$0.74

t0,3t1,794
54, I 33,08 I

4,751,787

$r5.98 $ 103,064,005

1-L Accounts Payable

Accounts payable represent the gross amount of expenditures or expenses incurred as a result of normal operations, but for which
no actual payment has yet been issued to vendors/providers as of December 31,2021.

l-M Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources, a separate financial statement element, represents a consumption of net position or fund balance

that applies to a future period(s) and thus will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expenses/expenditure) until then.

Deferred outflows of resources consist of unrecognized items not yet charged to pension and OPEB expense and contributions
from the Town after the measurement date but before the end of the Town's reporting period.

Deferred inflows of resources, a separate financial statement element, represents an acquisition of net position or fund balance

that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. Although
certain revenues are measurable, they are not available. Available means collected within the current year or expected to be

collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current year. Deferred inflows of resources in the
govemmental fund financial statements represent the amount of assets that have been recognized, but the related revenue has not
been recognized since the assets are not collected within the current year or expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be

used to pay liabilities of the curent year. Deferred inflows of resources consist of property tax receivable and other receivables

not collected within 60 days after year-end. Additionally, in the government-wide financial statement the Town reports defened
amounts related to pension and OPEB as well.

l-N Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term
obligations are reported as liabilities in the governmental activities, business-type activities, and proprietary fund Statements of
Net Position. Bond premiums are defered and amortized over the life of the bonds using the shaight-line method. Bonds

payable are reported net of the bond premium.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums, as well as bond issuance costs, during the

current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are

reported as other financing sources.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings and Direct
Placements, the Town utilizes the following classifications to categorize the financial transactions:

Direct Borrowings - financial transactions for a note or a loan where the Town negotiates certain terms with a single

lender and are not offered for public sale.

Direct Placements - financial transactions for the sale of bonds where the Town engages with a single buyer or

limited number of buyers without a public offering.
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Public Ofl'ering - financial transaction fol the sale of bonds u,here the Tou,n ensases typically with an investlrrent

banker or bond advisor, to sell the debt instrurnent to tlre public throLrgh public off-ering. Public offeriltgs are subject

to SecLrlity Exchange Comn.rission regulations, cledit rating and typically are nlore costly due to underwriting costs,

legal and other fees.

1 -O Compe ns ul ed A bsences

General leave for the Town includes vacation, and sick pay. General leave is based on an etrrployee's length of employrnent and

is ealned ratably during the span of employment. Upon retirement or terrnination, etnployees are paid full value for any accrued

general leave earned as set fotth by the Town's persontrel policy.

Vested or accurtrulated general leave that is expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources is repofted as

an expenditure and a fund liability of the governmental fund that will pay it. Arnounts of vested or accumulated general leave

that are not expected to be liquidated with expendable available resources are rlaintained separately atrd represent a reconciling
item between the fund and government-wide presentations.

l-P Claims and Judgments

Claims and judgments are recorded as liabilities if all the conditions of Governtnental Accounting Standards Board

pronouncelnents are rnet. Claims and judgrnents that would normally be liquidated with expendable available financial resources

are recolded during the year as expenditures in the governmental funds. Claims and judgrnents are recorded in the government-

wide financial statements as an expense when the related liabilities are incurred.

1-Q DeJined BeneJit Pension Plan

GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reportingfor Pensions - an antendnrenl of GASB Statement No. 27 and as

arnended by GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition.for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurenxent Date and

GASB Statement No. 82 Pension Issues - an antendment of GASB Statentent No. 67, No. 68 and No.73 requires pafticipating
employers to recognize their propoftionate share of collective net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources, deferred

inflows of resources, and pension expense, and schedules have been prepared to provide ernployers with their calculated

proporlionate share of these amounts. The collective amounts have been allocated based orr employer contributions during the

respective fiscal years. Contributions from employers are recognized when legally due, based on statutory requirements.

The schedules prepared by New Hampshire Retirernent Systern, and audited by the plan's independent auditors, require
rxanagement to rnake a number of estimates and assumptions related to the reported arrrounts. Due to the inherent nature and

uncertainty of these estimates, actual results could differ, and the differences may be material.

l-R Postemployment Bene/its Otlter Tltrtn Pensions

The Town maintains two separate other postemployment benefit plans (OPEB), as follows:

New Hampshire Retirement System Plott - For the purposes of measuring the total other postemployment benefit (OPEB)

Iiability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, infonnation
about the fiduciary net position of the New Hampshire Retirernent Systern OPEB Plan (the plan) and additions to/deductions

from the plan's fiduciary net position has been determined on the same basis as they are repofted by the New Hampshire

Retirernent System. For this prlrpose, the plan recognizes benefit payrxents when due and payable in accordatrce with the benefit
terms. Investrnents are reported at fair value, except money n.rarket investments and participating interest ealning investment

contracts that have a maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less, which are reporled at cost.

Single Employer PIan - For purposes of rneasuring the total OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows

of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB experlse, information has been deterrnined based on the Town's actuarial report. For

this purpose, benefit payrnents are recognized when due and payable in accordance with benefit terms.
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l-S Nel Position/Fund Balonces

Govemment-wide Statemenff - Equiry is classified as net position and displayed in three corxponents:

Net investment in capital assets - Consists of capital assets, net of accunrulated depreciation, and leduced by the

outstanding balances of any bonds, notes, ol' other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or

improvernent of those assets.

Restricted net position - Results when constraints placed on net position use are either externally imposed by a third
party (statutory, bond covelrant, or granting agency) or are irnposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling

legislation. The Town typically uses restricted assets first, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to
selectively defer the use until a further project.

Unrestricted net position - Consists of net position not meeting the definition of the preceding categol'ies.

Unrestricted net position is often subject to constraints imposed by rnanagement which can be removed or modified.

Funrl Balance Classilicaliotrs - GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governntental Fund Type Definitions,
provides more clearly defined fund balance categories to make sure the nature and extent of the constraints placed on a

government's fund balances are more transparent. The following classifications describe the relative strength of the spending

constraints:

Nonspendable - Amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable fonn (such as prepaid items,

inventoty or tax deeded property subject to resale); or (b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted - Amounts for which constraints have been placed on the use of the resources either (a) externally imposed

by creditors (such as through a debt covenant), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or
(b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed - Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by fonnal action of
the legislative body (Town Meeting). These arnounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the legislative body

removes or changes the specified use by taking the sarxe type of action that was employed when the funds were initially
comrnitted. This classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources have been

specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirernents.

Assigned - Amounts that are constrained by the Town's intent to be used for a specific purpose but are neither
restricted nor cornmitted. This intent can be expressed by the Board of Selectmen and Town Manager through the

budgetary process.

Unassigned - Amounts that are available for any purpose. Positive amounts are reported only in the general fund.

When multiple net position/fund balance classifications are available for use, it is the government's policy to utilize the rnost

restricted balances first, then the next most restricted balance as needed. When cotnponents of unrestricted fund balance are

used, cornmitted fund balance is depleted first followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last.

The Town's fund balance policy states that the Town shall maintain adequate fund reserves to protect itself against emel'gencies

and economic downturns. In addition, the Town has established the following guidelines:

General Fund - The Town will strive to retain between 6%o and l\oh of the municipality's gross appropriations, plus

local school net tax commitrnent, plus the statewide enhanced education amount, plus the county appropriation, which is

nreasured annually at the tax rate setting time.

l-T Use of Estinrutes

The financial statelnents and related disclosures are prepared in confomity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States. Management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reponed amounts of assets, deferred

outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date

of the financial staternents, and revenues and expenses during the period reported. Tlrese estirnates include assessing the

collectability of accounts, taxes and ambulance receivables, and the useful lives and impainnent of tangible and intangible
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capital assets, net pension Iiability, othel postemployrnent benefit liability. deferred outflows and inflows of l'esources related to
both pension and other posterrployrrent benefits, and accrued landfill postclosure care costs, alrol'lg others. Estirnates and

assumptions are reviewed periodically, and the eff'ects of revisions are reflected in the financial statelnents in the period they are

deterrnined to be necessary. Actual results could differ fi'orn estirnates.

l-U Mileriul Change in Clossi/icatiott

The accompanying financial statements reflect a change in classification frotn the prior year. Specifically, the impact fees fund
which accounts for impact fees collected by the Town did not qualify as a major fund fol the current fiscal year. As such it was

reclassified to the nonma.ior governrnental futtds.

NOTE 2 _ STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOANTABILITY

2-A B udgetnry Informntion

General governmental revenues and expenditures accounted for in budgetary funds are controlled by a forrnal integlated
budgetary accounting system in accordance with various legal requirements which govem the Town's operations. At its annual
rneeting, the Town adopts a budget for the current year for the general fund and the major proprietary water and sewer funds.
Except as reconciled below, the budget was adopted on a basis consistent with U.S. genelally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP).

Management may transfer appropriations between operating categories as deemed necessary, but expenditures may not legally
exceed budgeted appropriations in total. All annual appropriations lapse at year-end unless encumbered.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and continuing appropriations (cefiain projects and specific
iterns not fully expended at year-end) are recognized, is employed in the governmental funds. Encumbrances are not the

equivalent ofexpenditures, and ale therefore, repofied as pafi ofthe assigned fund balance at year-end, and are caried forward to
supplement appropriations of the subsequent year.

State statutes require balanced budgets but provide for the use of beginning unassigned fund balance to achieve that end. For the

fiscal year 2021, $2,119,265 of the beginning general fund unassigned fund balance was applied for this purpose.

2-B Budgetnry Reconcilirttion to GAAP Busis

While the Town repofis financial position, results of operations, and changes in fund balance on the basis of generally accepted

accounting principles (GAAP), the budgetary basis as provided by law is based upon accounting for certain transactions on a

basis of cash receipts, disbursements and encumbrances. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balance - Budget and Actual is presented for the majot' governmental fund which had a budget. Differences between the

budgetary basis and GAAP basis of accounting for the general fund are as follows:

Revenues and other financing sources:

Per Exhibit D (budgetary basis)

Ad.justrnents:

Basis diff'erences:

Inception of capital leases

GASB Staternent No. 54:

To record miscellaneous inconre of the blended f'unds

recognized as levenue on the GAAP basis. but not on the budgetary basis

Per Exhibit C-3 (GAAP basis)

$ s0,s19,272

957,837

$ 5r,985,r85

t65,454
342,622

34

(Continued)



TOWN OF SALEM, NEW HAfuIPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31,2021

Butlgetary reconciliqtion to GAAP bu.sis crtntinuetl:

Expctrdilures and othcr linaucitrg uses:

Per Exhibit D (budgetary basis)

Ad justmonts:

Basis clifl'erences:

Irrccp t iorr ol'cap itirl lcuscs

Encur.nbrances. beginn ing

Encurnbtiu.rccs. cnding

GASB Statemcnt No. 54:

J'o record expenclitures o1'the blended luncls duringthe year

To elinrinate transf'els betrvcen general ancl blended expendable turst fttnds

To recognizc transf'er betrveen blendecl expenclable trust and other funds

Per Exhibit C-3 (GAAP basis)

s 46,9'74,046

957,837
1.924,615
(589, r 25)

2,500

(3,760.677)

4,406,829

$ 49,916,02s

DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

NOTE 3 _ CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

At December 31,2021, the reported amount of the Town's deposits was $69,062,353 and the bank balance was 569,779,146. Of
the bank balance $69,679,855 was covered by federal depository insurance or by collateral held by the pledging bank or pledging

bank's trust department in the Town's name, and 599,291 in the primary governtnent and $389,43 I in the discretely presented

cornponent unit was uninsured and uncollateralized

$ 65,957 ,479
3,104,874

$ 69,062,353

Custodial Creclit Risk - The Town's repurchase agreelnents are all witlt banking institutions; therefore, are subject to custodial

creditrisk. Thecustodial creditriskistheriskthatintheeventofbankfailure,theTown'sdepositsmaynotberecovered.

Interest Rate Risl< - The term repurchase agreements are also subject to interest rate risk. Interest rate risk is the risk that

changes in interest rates will adversely affect the value of the Town's investlnents.

NOTE 4 - RESTRICTED ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents reconciliation:

Cash per Statement olNet Position (Exhibit A)
Cash per Statement of Fiduciary Net Position (Exhibit F-l)

Total cash and cash equivalents

Cash is classified as restricted for the following pul'poses:

Cash and cash equivalents:

General funcl:

Cap ital reserve litncls

lJealth insulance
'f otal restrictecl assets

$ 3,874,015

349.524

s 4,223,s39

NOTE 5 _ INVESTMENTS

Note 1-F describes statutory requilernents covering the investment of the Town funds. The Town holds investlxents that are

measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Since investing is not a core part of the Town's mission, the Town determines that

the disclosures related to these investments only need to be disaggregated by rnajor type. The Town categorizes its fair value

measurelrents within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles.
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The Town has the following recurring f'air value measlrrenrents and rnaturities as of December 31,2021:

Valuat ion

M casuler.nent Reported Less Than I Exenrpt l}om
M ethod Balancc Year l-5 Years Disclosure

Investments type:
Comnrou stock

Corporate bonds

Equity mutual funds

Fixed inconre rnutual f'unds

U.S. Treasury boncls

Total fair value

$ $ r,626,595

$ 2,955,8 r0

l,cvcl I

Level 2

Level I

Level 2

Level 2

$ 1.626.595

52,564

363,3 r r

812.209

l0l,l3 l

$

50,535 2,029

363,31 I

8t2,209
- l0l,l3 I-SmF:s -$ 

'0-1160-
$ 2,802,1 1 5

Interest Rate Risk - This is the risk that changes in nrarket interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investrnent.
Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the sensitivity of its fail value to changes in rnarket interest rates.
The Town does not have a forrnal investment policy that limits investrnent rnaturities as a lneans of rnanaging its exposure to fair'
value losses arising fi'orn increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk - The Town has no fonnal policy on lnanaging credit risk; however, State law limits investrnents as explained in
Note I -F. As of Decernber 3l , 2021 , the Town's investment pool had the following credit risk structure:

Reported Exempt fiom Rating as of Year End*

lnvestments Type Balance Disclosure Awt A-

$ r,626,595 $ $

52,564

363,31 I

812,209

t0r,r3r
$2,955,8r0 $2,802,r r5 $ t0l,13l $ 52,564

aPer Mood),'s

Custodial Credit Risk - This is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterpafty (e.g., broker/dealer) to honor a

transaction, the Town will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of
an outside party. The Town does not have custodial credit risk policies for investments.

ConcentrationofCreditRisk-TheTownplacesnolimitonthearnountitmayinvestinanyoneissuer. Morethan5%ofthe
Town's investrnents are in cornrnon stock, equity rnutual funds, and fixed income mutual funds. These investments are 557o,

l2oh, and27o/o, respectively, of the Town's total investrnents.

Investrnent reconcil iation :

Common stock

Corporate bonds

Equity mutual funds

Fixed inconre rtrutual furtds

U.S. Treasury bonds

Total

$ r,626,595

52,564

363,31r

812.209

l0l,l3l

Investments per Statement o1'Net Position (Exhibit A)
Investrnents per Statenrent o1'Fiduciary Net Position (Exhibit F-l)

Total investrnents

$ 921,264

2.034.546

$2,955,8 r 0

36



TOWN OF SALEM, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31,2021

NOTE 6 _ TAXES RECEIVABLE

Taxes receivable represent the amount of current and prior year taxes which have not been collected as of December 31,2021
The amount has been reduced by an allowance for an estimated uncollectible amount of $93,407. Taxes receivable by year are

as follows:

As reported on:

Exhibit A Exhibit C-l
Property:

Levy of202l
Unredeemed (under tax lien):

Levy of2020
Levy of20l9
Levies of 2018 and prior

Yield
Land use change

Less: allowance for estimated uncollectible taxes

Net taxes receivable

$2,589,845 $2,589,845

$3,025,580 $3,1 18,987

*The allowance for uncollectible property taxes is not recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting (Exhibit C-l and C-3) due to the 60-day rule as

explained in Note l-B. However, the allowance is recognized under the accrual basis ofaccounting (Exhibits A and B).

NOTE 7 _ OTHER RECEIVABLES

Receivables at December 31,2021, consisted of accounts (billings for police details, water, sewer, ambulance, and other user

charges) and intergovernmental amounts arising from grants. Receivables are recorded on the Town's financial statements to the

extent that the amounts are determined to be material and substantiated not only by supporting documentation, but also by a

reasonable, systematic method of determining their existence, completeness, valuation, and collectability,

Receivables as of December 31, 2021 for the Town's individual govemmental and proprietary major funds and nonmajor f,unds

in the aggregate including applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts are as follows:

Governmental Funds

296,712

173,348

53,658

2,940

2,484

(93,407) *

296,712

t73,348
53,658

2,940

2,484

General

Capital

Projects Nonmajor Total
Fiduciary

Funds

Receivables:

Accounts

Intergovernmental

Special assessments

Liens

Gross receivables

Less : allowance for uncollectibles

Net total receivables

s2,540,823 $

14,676 1,651,554

$2,928,703 $

1,706,s42 28,444,875
$ 387,880

40,312

103,869

28,444,875

$ r,044,169 $ 1,651,554 $ 407,318 $2,999,172 $28,444,875

2,659,368
( 1,6 1 5,1 99)

1,651,554 428,192
(20,874)

4,635,245
(t,636,073)

1. FiduciaryFunds-IntergovemmentalreceivablesrepresentpropertytaxescollectedonbehalfoftheSalemSchool District. Theseamountsarecollectedand
arepartoftheTown'sgeneralfundcashatyear-end. Thegeneralfundreportsanoffsettingintergovemmentalpayableforthisamountat year-end,seeNote

12.
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Ot het' rece ivct bl es conl i nued :

Ploprictary Furrds

Water Server

'l'ot al

Proprietary

Funcls

Receivables:

n ccounts

Sp ecial assessmcnl s

Int ergovcrnnrcnt al

Liens

Gross receivables

I-ess: allorvance fbr uncollectibles

Nct total leceivables

$ 279,044

I,883,722

692,ss7

s 2t4,339 $

2,710,909

15,340

493,383

4.594,631

692.557

r5,340

2,855,323

(23,613)

2,940,588

(35,7e7)

5,795,91I
(5e,4 r 0)

NOTEB_PREPAIDITEMS

Prepaid iterns at Decernber 31,2021 consisted of the following:

Governnrental
Activities

I nsurance

Othcr
Total

$ 2,83 | ,71 0 $2,904,791 $ 5,736.50 r

Business-ty p e

Activities

$ 245,14s

18,349

$

2,070

$ 263,494 $ 2,070

NOTE9_CAPITALASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31,2021 is as follows

Balance,

beginning

Govern mental activiti es:

At cost:

Not being depreciated:

Land

Constluction in prog'ess

Total capital assets not beingdepreciated

Being depreciated:

Land improvernents

Buildinp and building ittrp roventents

M achinery. equipment. and f'urnishings

I nfiast ruct ure

Total cap ital assets being depreciatecl
'fotal all capital assets

Less accumulated depreciat ion:

Land irnprovenrents

Buildings and building irtrp t'overneuts

M achinery, equiprnent. ancl lirrnishings

Inll'astructure

Total accumulatcd clep leciat ion

Net book value. capital assets being clepreciatecl

Net book value. all governrncntal activities capital assets

$ r3,7r0,995

13,710,995 3,816,668 (24,339) 17,503.324

Additions Deletions

IJalance.

ending

4,471,779

8,408,1 92

14.566,195

2t7,896,723

$ 183,2s5

3,633,413

811,907

4,079,158

$ (24,33e)

( r r 3,900)
(376,982)

(4,363,950)

$ r3,869,9r r

3,633,4t3

4.47 t ,7'79

8,294,292

15.001,120

2t7.61t,931
245,342,889 4,89r,065 (4,854,832) 245.379,t22

259,053,884 8,707,733 (4,879,t71) 262.882,446

(830,232)

(4,e48,172)

(9,25 l,605)
(160,425.312)

(221,772)

(223,237)

(r,0r r,373)
(7.t98.747)

t03,776

3',74,012

3,8r8,0r6

( r.052.004)
(5.067.633)

(9.888.966)

( r 63.806.043)

(t75,455,32t) (8,655. r29) 4,29s.804 ( r79.8 r4.646)

69,887,568 (3,764,064) (559,028) 65.564,476

s 83,598,563 $ 52,604 $ (583,367) $ 83.067.800
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Balance.

bcginning Adclitions Deletions

llalancc.

encling

C api tu I assels con t i ntrecl :

Business-type activities:
At cost:

Not being clepreciatecl:

Land

Intangitrlc assets

Constnlction in prog'ess
'['otal capital asscts not bein-edepreciated

Being dep leciat ed:

Buildings and building it.np rovements

M achinery. equip ment. and l'urnishings

Infl'astnrcl ure

Total cap ital assets being depreciated

Total all capital assets

Less accurnulatcd rlcp leciat ion:

Buildings and building imp rovements

M achinery. equiprnent. and furnishings

Infl'astructure

Total accurnulated depreciat ion

Net book value. capital assets beingdepreciated

Net book value. all business-type activities capital assets

Govern mental activities:
General government

Public saf-ety

I-l ighrvays and streets

Sanitat ion

Culture and recreation

Total depreciation expense

Busi ness-type activiti es:

Water

Server
'l'otal depreciation exp ense

G eneral

Capital pro.iect

$ 350.000

r,07 r,000

21,992,820

$

864,879 (9.796.887)

$ 350.000

1.071.000

13.060"8l2

$

23,413,820 864,879 (9,796,887) 14.48r,812

3,s69,945

5,688,080

29,806,',786

3.569.945

5.688.080

39,'725,03'79,918,25t
39,064,811 9,918,251 48.983.062

62,478,631 10,783,r30 (9.'796,887) 63,464.874

(84,e5e)

(r66,5rr)
(808,34e)

$ 29t,325
794,127

7,478,7s6

32,191

58,73 0

$ 8,655,129

$ '724,629

335, r 90

$ 1 ,05 9,81 9

NOTE 10 _ INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

Interfund Balances - The conrposition of interfund balances as of December 3 I , 2021 is as follows

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

(570,96e)

(3,485,654)

(13,363,793)

(655,928)

(3,652, r 65)

(t4,t'72.t42)
(17 ,420,4t6) ( 1,059,819) ( r 8,480,235)

21,644,395 8,858,432 30,502,827

$ 45,058,215 $9,723,31r $(9,796,887) $ 44,984,639

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the Town based on theirusage of the related assets. The amounts allocated to

each function are as follows:

Nonnra.jor

General

Nonma.jor

$ 31,457

r.606,039

429"940

$ 2.0(r7.436

The outstanding balances alnong funds result rnainly from the tirne lag between the dates that (l) intelfund goods and services

are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting systern, and (3) payrnents

between funds are rnade,
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IttterfttndTrnnsfers-ThecorrrpositionofinterfundtlarrsfersfbrtheyearendedDecenrber3l,202l isasfbllorvs

Transl?rs In:

Cap it al

Plo.iects

Fund

lticlr"rciall, Itund

l-r'ansl'els out:

Gencral I'uncl

Nonnrajol lirncl

Water proprietary I'r,rnd

Server proprietary I'und

l-otal

$

General

$ 452188
s4,s66

G encral

Fund Total OPEB-l-rust

g) )97

276,722

249.080

10.000

10.000

$ 4,37 6.829

8r8.2r8
$ 4,376,829

9r0,5r r

276.722

249,080

$ 30.000

$618,095 $5,195,047 $5,813,142 $ 50.000

During the year, transfels are used to (l) move revenues fi'om the fund with collection authority to the fund responsible for
expenditure and (2) nrove general fund resources to provide an annual subsidy.

NOTE 11 _ ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accrued Iiabilities reported at Decernber 31,2021, were as follows:

Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds

Nonm4ior

5 23,446

Water Seiver

$ 1q.?83 $2,W
Total

Salary and wages

Employee benefits

Total accrued liabilities

$498,884

54,566

$ s07,2s4 $ 23,446 $ r 9,783 $2,967 $ 553.450

NOTE 12 _ INTERGOVERNMENTAL PAYABLES

Arnounts due to other governrxents at December 31,2021 consist of the following

Governmental

FundsBusiness-ty p e

Activities General

[ridciary

Funds

Various fees due to the State of New Flampshire

Property taxes due to the custodial funds

Property taxes due to the Salem School District
Arlrounts due to the State of New Flampshire

(unissued state revolving loan)

1'otal intergovernmental payables due

$ $ 33,121

28,444,875

$

28.444.875

23,712

$ 6,902 $ 28,50r,708 $28.444.875

general fund cash at ycar-cnd.

based uporr an aged schedLrle in the next calendar year.

NOTE ]3 _ DEFERRED OUTFLOI,VS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows of resoulces are as follows

6,902

Govelnrrental

Activities
Bus iness-ty p e

Activities
Prop rietary lruncls

Water Server 'l'ot al

AmoLurts lelated to pensions. see Note l7
Arrounts related to OPEB. see Note l8

l'otal dcf'crred outllows of resources s22.800.2',79 $ 222,147 5204.029 $ 18. r 18 5222.t47

$ 8.056,3 r4

14.743-965

t50,t23
72,024

$ r33,93 r

70.098

$ r6.r92
1.926

$ r50.r23

72,024

$
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Deferred inflows of resources are as follows:

Deferred property to(es not collected within 60 days of fiscal year-end

Property ta:<es collected in advance of warrants being issued

Rent payments received in advance

Bond premiums amortized over the life of the bond

Grant revenue collected in advance of eligible expenditures being made

Amounts related to pensions, see Note 17

Amounts relatedto OPEB, seeNote 18

Total deferred inflows ofresources

Betterment as sess ment s not current ly available

Water rents received in advance of warrants being issued

Amounts related to pensions, see Note l7
Amounts related to OPEB, see Note 18

Total deferred inflows of resources

Governmental FundsGovernmental

Activities
$ $ 588,056 $

t14,197

35,498

40,5 l8

- $ 588,056

- ll4,t97
- 35,498

- 40,5 18

1,559,405 1,559,405

lt4,t97
35,498

1,559,405

I 3,558,196

1,759,816

$ t7,027,112 s 778,269 $ 1,559,405 $2,337,674

Business-type

Activities
Propriet ary Funds

Water Sewer Total

$ 4,s94,631
r0,694

252,647

9,036

$1,883,722
10,694

225,397

8,7 l5

$2,710,909

27,250

321

$ 4,594,631

t0,694
252,647

9,036

$ 4,867 ,008 s2,128j28 $ 2,738,480 $4,867,008

NOTE 14 _LEASE OBLIGATIONS

Capital Leases - The Town has entered into certain capital lease agreements under which the related equipment will become the

property of the Town when all the terms of the lease agreements are met.

Present Value

of Remaining

Payments as of
December 3l 2021

Cap ital lease obliptions :

Fire pumper

Multiple vehicles & equipment (2021)

Total capital lease obligptions

Standard

Interest

Rate

1.98%

0.98o/o

302,943

638,545
$

$ 941,488

Leased equipment under the capital leases, included in capital assets, is as follows:
Governmental

Activities

$ 7s0,221

957,837

1,708,058

58,526

$ 1,649,532

The annual requirements to amortize the capital leases payable as of December 31,2021, including interest payments, are as

follows:
Fiscal Year Ending Govemmental

December 31, Activities

Equipment:

Fire pumper

Multiple vehicles & equipment (2021)

Total equipment

Less: accumulated depreciation

Total capital lease equipment

2022
2023

Total requirements

Less: interest

Present value of remaining p ayments

$ 479,177

479,179

958,356

I 6,868

$ 941,488

Amortization of lease equipment under capital assets is included with depreciation expense.
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Operuting Leases - The Town subleases certain office buildirrgs to businesses and othel governrnental agencies. The Town
received $4 10,388 in sublease rental incorne througlt the year ending Decetnbet'31,2021.

NOTE 15 - SHORT-TERM DEBT

ChangesintheTown'sshort-tenncapital borrowingsduringtheyearendedDecenrber3l,202 Iconsistedofthefollowing:

Br,rsir-ress-ty p e Activities

Balance

.lanuary I,
2021

Original
Issue

Interest
Rate A cld it ions l)e let ions

Balance
Decernber 3 l,

2021
Ilond anticipatior-r note $ 1,600,000 t.25y" s 1,600,000 i; $ ( r,600,000) $

The purpose of the short-time borrowings was to provide for interim financing for various capital improvement projects

NOTE 16 _ LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Changes in the Town's long-term liabilities consisted of the following for the year ended Decelxber 31,2021:

Balance

Janualy l.
2021 Additions Reductions

Balance

December 3l.
2021

Due Within

One Ycar'

Due ln M ore

Than One Year

Governrrental activities:

Bonds payable:

l)irect p lacements

Public offerings

Prernium

Total bonds payable

Capital leases

Compensated absences

Accrued landfill postclosul'e care costs

Net pension liability
Net other postemploynrent benefits

Total long-terrn liabilities

Business-ty pe activities:

Bonds p ay able:

Direct p lacements

Public olferings

Premium

Total bonds payable

Conrpensated absences

Net pension liability
Net other posternployment benefits

Total long-telm liabilities

(r.549.9r6)
(3,008)

(349.693)

(re.6t8)

I I ,77't ,589
130,203

744.697

341,816

r 0.335,905

I 30,203
'744,69'l

34t.8t6

$ $ I,4 r 6,28 l $ (r6r,92r)
(s 86,000)

(54,99ri)

$ l,254.360 $

3.022.000

332.296

$ 937.34t
2,697,000

277,298

31'7,0t9
325"000

54,998

3,608,000

387,294

3,99s,294
694,841

3,7 63,911

480,000

s8,729,926

42,01 I ,888

3.9t t,639
473,790

3.412,046

454.000

39.963,8 I 4

49,820,577

1,4t6,28t
957,837

7 ?c)5

8,285,285

(ri02,9 r 9)

(7 1 r,1 90)

(2s'1,4s2)

(6,000)

(t8,766,t t2)
(47 6,596)

4.608.656

941.488

3,508.854

474.000

39,963.8 r 4

49,820.5'17

69'7,0t7

46't"698

96,808

20,000

$ 109,675,860 $ 10,661,798 $ (21,020,269) $99,3r7.3ti9 $ 1,281,523 $ 98,035,866

$ 1,222,142

2,137,000

l 6l ,093

s 8,416,252 $

1, I 80,000

2l t.018

(986,3 s r )
(524,000)

(39,565)

$ 8.652.043

2"793,000

332"546

$ I,l0r,0l7 $

280,000

60,661

'1.551,026

2"5 l 3,000

27 t .879

I,441,684

I 00.996

$ 5,001,829 S 9,914,7n $ (t,922,235) $r2.994,305 $ r,44r,684 S n.552"621

3,520,235

126,766

I,094,390
260,438

9,807,2'70

6,445

42



TOWN OF SALEM, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31,2021

Long-term bonds are comprised of the following:

Original
Amount

Maturity
Date

Interest

Rate o/o

Outstanding at

December 31,

2021

Current

Portion

Issue

Date

Govern mental activities:
Bonds payable:

Direct placement:

South Broadway sewer and bridge

Public offerings:

Drinking water cap acity

Depot land acqusition

Bridge construction/water improvements

Bridge construction/water imp rovements

Total public offerings

Bond premiums

Total

Business-type activities :

Bonds payable:

Direct placements:

Blake Road project

Exit 2 water system improvements

South Boradway water main

South Broadway sewer and bridge

Total direct placements

Public offerings:

Bridge construction/water imp rovements

Bridge construction/water improvements

Water main improvement

Drinking water capacity

W. Dunston Road

Total public offerings

Bond premiums

Total

$ 1,416,281 2021 2040 2.00 $ 1,254,360 $ 66,019

$ 200,000

$ 2,830,000

$ 1,418,000

$ 1,189,909

$ 695,900

s 1,509,273

$ 2,883,125

$5,533,127

2004

2018

2021

2021

2024

202',7

2030

2040

1.49

t.96
2.00-3.00

3.00

3.00-5.00

I .51

0.81

2.00

$ r 05,000 $

934,749

2,594,812

5,017,482

2019

2019

2014

2013

2024

2029

2024

2023

120,000

2,260,000

420,000

222,000

40,000

285,000

140,000

I I 1,000

3,022,000 576,000

332,296 54,998

$ 4,608,656 $ 697,017

35,000

149,626

288,313

264,078

8,652,043 737,017

3.00

2.00-3.00

2.00-4.00

1.49

0.82

644,000

332,546 60,667

$11,777,589 $1,441,684

The annual requirements to amortize all governmental activities general obligation bonds oulstanding as of December 31,2027,
including interest payments, are as follows:

Governmental activities:

Bonds - Direct Placement Bonds - Public Offerings

$ 692,09t

$ 1,900,000

$ t, I 10,000

$ 800,000

$ I,r80,000

2013

2014

2015

2019

2021

2023

2024

2025

2024

2031

69,000

r 85,000

I 10,000

I 60,000

120,000

138,000

555,000

440,000

480,000

r , I 80,000

2,793,000

Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
Fiscal Year Ending

December 31,

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026
2027-2031

2032-2036

2037-204t
Totals

$ $ $66,019

66,019

66,019

66,019

66,019

330,095

3 30,095

264,075

25,087

23,767

22,447

21,126

19,806

79,223

46,214

13,204

91,106

89,786

88,466

87,145

85,825

409,3 18

376,309

277,279

$ 576,000

576,000

465,000

285,000

280,000

840,000

$ l 18,935

95, I 55

71,375

sl,925
37,800
40,600

$ 694,935

67 r,155

s36,375

336,92s

3 r 7,800

880,600

$ 1,505,234$ 1,2s4,360 $ 250,874
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AS OF AND FOR THE IIISCAL YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 3I, 2O2I

l-he annuaf requiretnents to amortize all busine.ss-t1,pe actit,itic.s gcttct'trl obligulion bol?rlr outstanding as of Decenrber 31,2021,
including interest payments, are as follows:

Bus i ness-type activiti es:

Fiscal Year Ending

Decenrber 31.

Bonds - Direct Placcmcnts Boncls - Public Ol'l-crings

Plincip al I nt erest
-l- 

ot al Principal Interest lotal
2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027-2031

2032-2036

2037-2041

Totals

s 737,0t7
739,283

7 4t,584
708,920

711,292

2,63',7,246

1,320,390

I,056,3 I I

r 40.007

128.3'75

n6,784
t05.774

95,786

342,723

r 84"855

52,8t6

$ 877.024

8(r7.(r5 8

858.368

8 r4.694

807"078

2.979.961)

t.505.245

t.109.t21

$ 644.000

644.000

5 75,000

230.000

120,000

580.000

$ r09.42 r

85.620

59.600

3 9.650

29.250

60.050

$ 753,421

729.620

634,600

269,650

t49.250

640.050

$

$8,652,043 $ r,r67,r20 $ 9,8r9,r63 $2,793,000 $383,591 $3,176,591

All debt is general obligation debt of the Town, which is backed by its full faith and credit, and will be repaid from general
governmental revenues.

Accrued LotrtlJill Poslclosure Care Cosls - The Town ceased operating its landfill in prior years. Federal and State laws and
regulations require that the Town place a final cover on its landfill when closed and perfonn certain maintenance and monitoring
functions at the landfill site after closure. A liability is being recognized based on the future postclosure care costs that will be

incurred. The recognition of these landfill postclosure care costs is based on the amount of the landfill used through the end of
the year. The estimated liability for landfill postclosure care costs has a balance of $474,000 as of Decernber 31,2021 . The
estirxated total current cost of the landfill postclosure care ($474,000) is based on the amount that would be paid if all equiprnent,
f-acilities, and services required to close, monitor, and maintain the landfill were acquired as of December 31,2021. However,
the actual cost of postclosure care may be higher or lower due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in landfill laws and
regulations.

Previously a 30-year period after closure was presented in the Town's engineers estimates bases on New Harnpshire Depaltment
of Environmental Safety (NHDES) requirements for financial assurance for landfills. The financial assurance riles were
rnodified 1n 2014 to provide for financial assurance for 30 years on an ongoing basis. The necessary effort and costs for
postclosure care will vary with a range of issues, including watel quality, NHDES requirements, cap condition and gas testing,
are anticipated to reduce over tirne. Requirements for maintenance of the cap itself will occur for an indefinite amount of time.
The Town's engineer anticipates postclosure costs will potentially decrease, on average, by approximately half after the first 30
years of closure (9 years from now) and continue at the reduced level for an indefinite time frame. The Town's engineer
believes a 30-year period from year-end is a reasonable evaluation period for accounting purposes. The resulting estimate oftotal
costs is $474,000 as of December 31,2021 .

Bortds Artlhorized and Unissuerl- Bonds and notes authorized and unissued as of Decernber 31,2021 were as follows

Per

Town Meeting Unissued

Vote of Purpose Amount

March, 2014 ( WA #8)

March,20l9 ( WA #5)

March, 2020 ( WA #l l)
March,2020(WA#12)
March.202l ( WA #13)

Replacement of briclges and culverts

Drinking rvater cap acity

Stormrvater planning- CWSIIF x

Wastewatel assct nranagemcnt - CWSRIT *

Stormwater planning - CWSRI:

s24
4.285_000

75.000

30,000

75.000

s 4,465.024

*l-hese bonds rvere issue d h 2022 tnld subse quently rvere 1 007o lbrgiven by the State ol Neu, I lanrpsh ire.
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NOTE 17 _ DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

PIan Descriptiort -The New Harnpslrire Retirerrent System (NIIRS or the Systenr) is a public employee retirement systern that

adrninisters a cost-sharing rnultiple-ernployer defined benefit pension plan (Pensiorr Plan). a colnponent unit of the State of New
Hampshire, as defined in Governrnental Acconnting Standards Board (GASB) Statetrrent No. 67, Financiel Reporting .for
Pension Plans - an arnendment of GASB Staternent No. 25. The Pension Plan was established in 1967 by RSA 100-A:2 and is
qualified as a tax-exempt organization under Sections 401(a) and 501(a) of the Intenral Revenue Code. The Pension Plan is a

contributory, defined benefit plan providing service, disability, death and vested retirernent benefits to metnbers and their
beneficiaries. Substantially all full-time State ernployees, public school teachers and administrators, permanent firefighters and

pennanent police officers within the State are eligible and required to participate in the Pension Plan. The System issues a

publicly available financial report that rnay be obtained by writing the New l-larnpshire Retirernent System, 54 Regional Drive,
Concord, NH 03301.

Bene.fits Provided - Benefit fonr.rulas and eligibility requirements for the Pension Plan are set by state law (RSA 100-A). The

Pension Plan is divided into two rnernbership groups. State arrd local ernployees and teachers belong to Group I. Police and

firefighters belong to Group II.

Group I benefits are provided based on creditable service and average final salary for the highest of either three or five years,

depending on when service comlnenced.

Group II benefits are provided based on age, years of creditable service and benefit rrultiplier depending on vesting status as of
111112. ThemaximlrmretirementallowanceforGroupllmernbersvestedby llll12(45 yearsofagewith20yearsofserviceor
age 60 regardless of years of creditable service) is the average final compensation rnultiplied by 2.5% rnultiplied by creditable

service. For Group II members not vested by lllll2 the benefit is calculated the same way but the rnultiplier used in the

calculation will change depending on age and years of creditable service as follows:

Years of Creditable Service as of 7lll12 Minimurn Ase Minimum Service Benel'it Multiplier
At least 8 but less than l0 years 46 21 2A%
At least 6 but less than 8 years 47 22 z.)70
At least 4 but less than 6 years 48 23 2.2%
Less than 4 years 49 24 2.1%

Members of both groups may qualify forvested deferred allowances, disability allowances and death benefit allowances, subject

to meeting various eligibility requirements. Benefits are based on AFC or earnable cornpensation and/or service.

Conlribulions - The System is financed by contributions frorn both the employees and the Town. Member contribution rates are

established and may be amended by the State legislature while employer contribution rates are set by the System trustees based

on an actuarial valuation. Group I (ernployee and teacher) members are required to contribute Joh of earnable compensation and

Group II (police and fire) members contribute 11.55% and 11.80%o respectively. For the period of January 1,2021 to June 30,

2021 ,the Town contributed24.llo/o for police, 26.43% for fire and 10.88% for other ernployees. For the period of July 1,2021
to Decernber 31,2021 the Town contributed 30.61% for police, 29.18% for fire and 13.15o/o for other employees. The

contribution requirernent for the fiscal year 2021 was 54,689,492, which was paid in full.

Pensiort Liabilities, Pensiort Expense, Deferred Ou{Iows of Resources, anl Deferred Inflors of Resources Related lo
Pensions -AtDecember3l,202l theTownreportedaliabilityof $40,708,5 ll ($39,963,8l4forgovernmental activitiesand
$144,697 for business-type activities and proprietary funds) for its proportionate share of tlre tret pension liability. The net

pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021 ,and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was

determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Town's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a

projection of the Town's long-telm share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all
participatingtownsandschool districts,actuariallydeterrnined. AtJune30,202l ,theTown'sproportionwas0.92o/owhichwas
a decrease of 0.02"/o fi'onr its proportion tneasured as of June 30,2020.
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For the year ended December 31,2021, the Town recognized pension expense of $2,270,919. At December 31,2027 the Town

reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Business-type Activities

Governmental Activities & Proprietary Funds

Deferred

Outflows of
Resources

Deferred

Inflows of
Resources

Deferred

Outflows of
Resources

2,894

77,779

Deferred

Inflows of
Resources

Changes in proportion

Changes in assumptions

Net difference between projected and actual investment

earnings on pension plan investments

Differences between expected and actual experience

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date

Total

$ 155,299

4,173,994

1,119,044

2,607,977

$ r,962,840 $

11,176,962

418,394

$ 36,576

208,275

7,79620,853

48,597

$ 8,056,314 $ r3,558,196 $ 150,123 $ 2s2,647

The $2,607,977 (govemmental activities) and $48,597 (business-type activities, and proprietary funds) reported as deferred

outflows of resources related to pensions results from the Town contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be

recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended December 31, 2022. Other amounts reported as defered
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

Business-type

Activities &
Proprietary Funds TotalDecember 3l

Governmental

Activities
2022

2023

2024
2025

Thereafter

Totals

$(1,49r,713) $

( 1,286,81s)

(1,542,865)

(3,788,465)

$ (1,519,510)

(1,310,794)

(1,571,615)

(3,859,060)

(27,797)
(23,979)
(28,750)
(70,595)

$ (8,109,858) $ (151,121) _$_(8,260f2

Actuarial Assumptions - The collective total pension liability was based on the following assumptions:

Inflation: 2.0%

Salary increases: 5.60/o aYerage, including inflation
Wage inflation: 2.75% (2.25% for Teachers)

Investment rate of return : 6.7 5oh net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation

Mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Healthy Retiree Mortality Tables with credibility adjustments for each group (Police

and Fire combined) and projected fully generational mortality improvements using Scale MP-2019,

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30,2020 valuation were based on the results of the most recent actuarial experience

study, which was for the period July l, 2016 - June 30, 2019.

Longierm Rates of Return - The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investment was selected from a best

estimate range determined using the building block approach. Under this method, an expected future real retum range is

calculated separately for each asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rate of return net of investment expenses by the target asset allocation percentage and by

adding expected inflation.
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Following is a table presenting target allocations and -qeometric real lates of return fbr each asset class:

Weighl ed a\/erage long-term
-l-arget 

cxpectecl real rate ofreturn
Asset Class A llocat ion 202t

I-argc Cap liquities

Small/M id Cap IiqLrities

1-otal donrest ic cquitl,

Int'l Equities (unhedgecl)

Emerging Int'l Equities

Total internalional equitl,

Core [JS Fixecl Incorre

Total fixecl income

Private cquity

Private debt

Total alternat ive investments

Real estate

Total

22s0%

7.50Yo

30.00%

14.00o/o

6.jQo/o

20.00%

25.00%

25.00Yo

10.00%

5.00o/n

l5.00Yo

10.00%

r00.00%

6.460/o

Ll4Yo

5.53%

2.37Y"

3.60Yo

8.85%

7.25Yo

6.600/"

Discouttt Rate - The discount rate used to rneasure the collective total pension liability was 6.l5oA. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assul'ned that plan member contributions will be made at the curent contribution rate and that
employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the
lnember rate. For purposes of the projection, rnernber contributions and ernployer service cost contributions are projected based
on the expected payroll of current rxembers only. Employer contributions are determined based on the Pension Plan's actuarial
funding policy as required by RSA 100-A:16. Based on those assurnptions, the Pension Plan's fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to rnake all projected future benefit payments to cun'ent plan rnernbers. Therefore, the long-tenn
expected rate of return on Pension Plan investment was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to detennine the
collective total pension liability.

Sensilivity of lhe Town's Proportiotrote Share of lhe Net Pensiott Liability to Cltonges in the Discount Rate - The following
table presents the Town's ploportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 6.15%o as well as

what the Town's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is l-
percentage point lower (5.7 5%) or 1-pelcentage point higher (1 .7 5%) than the current rate:

Actuarial Current Single

Valuation lo% Decrease Rate Assumption loZ Increase

Activities Date 5.'l5yo 6.75% 7.75o/o

Governmental June 30- 2021 S 57,152.827

Business-type .lune 30.2021 $ 1,065.001

$ 39,963,81 7 $25,625,372

s 't 44,694 $ 477 ,510

Pensiorr Plott Fiduciary Nel Posilion - Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued New Hampshire Retirenrent Systern Cost-Sharing Multiple Errployer Deflned Benefit Pension Plan financial
report.

NOTE 18 _ POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

IB-A New Hnmpshire Retirement System (NHRS)

PIan Description - The New Harnpshire Retirernent Systern (NHRS or the Systern) is a public ernployee retirernent system
which administels a cost-sharing rlultiple-ernployer other postemployrnent benefit (OPEB) plan. For additional system
inforrnation, please refer ro Ihe 2021 Annual Cornprehensive Financial Report, which can be found on the system's website at
www.nhrs.org.
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BeneJitsProvided -BenefltarrountsandeligibilityrequirementsfbrtheOPEBPlanaresetbyStatelaw(RSA 100-A:52,RSA
100-A:52-a and RSA 100-A:52-b), and nrernbers are designated in statute by type. The four membership types are Gror-rp ll,
Police Officels and Firefighters: Group l, Teachers; Group l, Political Subdivision Ernployees; and Group I, State Ernployees.
The OPEB Plan provides a rnedical irlsurance subsidy to qualified retired rrembers. The medical insnrance subsidy is a paynrent
rnade by NHRS to the forrner employer or its insurance administrator toward the cost of health insnrance for a qualified retiree,
his/her qualified spouse, and his/her certified dependent children wilh a disability who are living in the household and being
cared for by the retiree. If the health insurance premiurn alrount is less than the ntedical subsidy amollnt, then only the health
insurance pl'emium amoullt will be paid. lf the health insurance prerniunr alrount exceeds the medical subsidy arnount, then the

retiree or other qualified person is responsible for paying any portion that the employer does not pay.

Group I benefits are based on creditable service, age and retirement date. Group II benefits are based on hire date, age and

creditable service. The OPEB plan is closed to new entrants.

Maximurn medical subsidy rates paid during fiscal year 2021 were as follows:

For qualified retirees not eligible for Medicare, the arnounts were $375.56 for a single-person plan and $751.12 for a

two-person plan.

For those qualified retirees eligible for Medicare, the amounts were $236.84 for a single-person plan and $473.68 for a

two-person plan.

Contributiotts - The OPEB Plan is funded by allocating to the 40 l(h) subtrust the lessor of:25oh of all employer contributions
made in accordance with RSA 100-A:16 or the percentage of employer contributions determined by the actuary to be the

minimum rate necessary to maintain the benefits provided under RSA 100-A:53-b, RSA 100-A:53-c, and RSA 100-A:53-d. For
fiscal year 2018, the minirnum rates detennined by the actuary to rnaintain benefits were the lesser of the two options and were
used to determine the employer contributions due to the 401(h) subtrust. The State Legislature has the authority to establish,
amend and discontinue the contribution requirements of the OPEB Plan. Administrative costs are allocated to the OPEB Plan

basedonfundbalances.FortheperiodofJanuary I,2021 to June30,2021 ,the Towncontributed3.66Yo forpoliceandfire,and
0.29% for other ernployees. For the period of July 1,2021 to Decernber 31,2027, the Town contributed 3.21o/ofor police and

fire, and 0.31% for other employees. The contribution requirernent for the fiscal year2021 was $481,163, which was paid in

full.

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, Deferred Outflotus of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources Reluled lo OPEB - AI
Decenrber 31,2021, the Town reported a liability of $4,211 ,349 (54,140,199 for governrnental activities and $77,150 for
business-type activities and proprietary funds) for its proportionate share of the net OPEB liability. The net OPEB liability was

measured as of June 30,2021, and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was detennined by an

actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020. The Town's proportion of the net OPEB liabilify was based on a projection of the

Town's long-term share of contributions to the OPEB plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating towns and

school districts, actualially detennined. At June 30,2021, the Town's proportion was 1.05% which was a decrease of 0.02o/o

from its proportion measured as of June 30,2020.

For the year ended Decernber 31,2021, the Town recognized OPEB expense of $28,855. At December 31,202 l, the Town
repofted deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Business-typ e Act ivities

Governmental Activities & Proprietary Funds

Def'erred

Outflorvs of
Resources

Deferred

Inflows of
Resources

Def'erred

Outflows of
Resources

Deferred

lnflows of
Resources

Changes in proportion

Net difl'erence betrvccn pro.jectcd ancl actual investrrent

earnings on OPEB plan investments

Diff'erences lretrveen expected ancl actual experience

Contributions subsequent to the nreasurement date

Total

$ $765$ s 14

51.718

864

964

l6
233.324 4,348

$ 233"324 $ 53,347 S 4,348 $ 994
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The $233,324 (for governrnental activities) and $4,348 (for br-rsiness-type activities, and proprietary funds) reported as deferled
outflows of resources related to OPEB results fiom the Town contribLrtions subsequent to the rneasurenlent date will be

recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the year ended Decerrrber 31,2022. Other arrrounts reported as deferred
outflows of resonrces and def'erred inflows olresources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Businuss-1y p c

Iriscal Ycal F,ncling Governnrental Activities &
Dccember 31, Activitics Proprietary Funds Total

2022

2023

2024

2025
'l'herealler'

l'ot als

Acluorial Assutrtptiotrs - The collective total OPEB liability was based on the following actuarial assutnptions:

Inflation: 2.0%
Salaryincreases: 5.6Yoaverage,includinginflation
Wage inflation: 215% (2.25% for Teachers)
Investment rate of return 6.15o/o net of OPEB plan investrnent expense, including inflation for detennining solvency

contributions

Mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Healthy Retiree Mortality Tables with credibility adjustments for each group (Police

and Fire combined) and projected fully generational rrortality itnprovements using Scale MP-2019.

The actuarial assurnptions used in the June 30,2020 valuation were based on the results of the most recent actuarial experience
study, which was for the period July 1,2016 - June 30,2019.

Long-tenn Rates of Relurn - The long-terrn expected rate of return on OPEB plan investment was selected fi'om a best estirnate

range determined using the building block approach. Under this rnethod, an expected future real return range is calculated
separately for each asset class. These ranges are cornbined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the

expected future real rate of return net of investment expenses by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. Following is a table presenting target allocations and geotnetric real rates of return for each asset class:

Weighted average long-term

expected real rate of rcturn

Asset Class 202t

$ ( r3.458) $

( r 0.867)

(r2,r80)
( r 6,842)

(25r)
(202)
(227)

(3 r4)

$ ( r 3,70e)
( r r,069)

(12,407)

(r7,r56)

l_l:1112 _q________821). 111111"!-

Talget

Allocation

I-arge Cap Equities

SnrallAvl id Cap EqLrities

1'otal domestic equity

Int'l Equities (unhedged)

IJmelging I nt'l Equities
'l'otal internat ional equity

Core US Fixecl Inconre

Total fixecl inconre

Private eqLrity

Plivate dcbt
'f ()tal alt(:rnative ir]vestmenls

I{cal estate

Total

30.00%

22.50%
'7.50%

6.460/o

1.14%

5.53%

2.37Yo

3.600/"

8.85%

7.25%

t4.00%

6.00Vo

20.00%

2s.00%

25.00Yo

r0.00%

s.00%

15.000

10.00%

r00.00%
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Discounl Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2021 was 6.15%. The projection of
cash flows r"rsed to deternrine the discount rate assulred that employer contributions will be urade under the cuu'ent statutes RSA
100-A:16 and 100-4.:53. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB Plan's fidr.rciary net position was projected to make all
projected firture benefit paylrents of current plan rnernbers. Therefore, the long-ternr expected rate of return on OPEB Plan

investrnents was applied to all periods of projected benefit paylnents to deterrnine the collective total OPE,B liability.

Sensitivitlt of the Towtt's Proportionute Share of lhe OPEB Liability lo Chonges in lhe Discount Rale - The fbllowing table
presents the Town's proportionate share of the OPEB liability calculated using the discount rate of 6.75% as well as what the

Town's proportionate share of the OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is l-percentage point
lower (5.75oh) or I -percentage point higher (7 .75o/o) than the current rate:

Actuarial Current Single

Valuation loZ Declease Rate Assumption lo% Increase

Activities Date 5.75% 6.75y' 7.75yo

Governnrental June 30. 2021 S 4,500,723

l3usiness-type June 30, 202 I $ 83,868

4,140,199 53,826,522
77,1s0 $ 71,304

$

$

Sensitivity of the Town's Proportionate Share of the OPEB Liability to Cltunges in the Heahltcore Cost Trend Assumptiott -
GASB No.75 requires the sensitivity of the OPEB liability to the healthcare cost trend assumption. Since the medical subsidy
benefits are fixed stipends, there is no sensitivity to changes in the healthcare cost trend assumption.

OPEB PIon Fiduciury Net Positiott - Detailed infonnation about the OPEB plan's fiduciary net position is available in the

separately issued New Hampshire Retirement System Cost-Sharing Multiple Employer Defined Benefit OPEB Plan financial
repoft.

I8-B Town of Solem Retiree Healtlt Benefit Progrant

PIan Descriplron - GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefts Other Than
Pensions, requires governments to account for other postemployment benefits (OPEB) on an accrual basis, rather than on a pay-
as-you-go basis. The effect is the recognition of an actuarially determined expense on the Statement of Activities when a future
retiree earns their posternployment benefits, rather than when they use their postemployrnent benefit. The postemployrnent
benefit liability is recognized on the Statement of Net Position over time.

BeneJits Provided - The Town provides postemployment healthcare benefits for ceftain eligible retirees. The Town provides
health care benefits to its eligible retirees and their dependents. The benefits are provided through the Town, and the full cost of
benefits is shared between the Town and retirees.

Employees Coveretl by BeneJil Terms - At Decernber 31,2021 OPEB plan membership consisted of the following:

Inactive plan menrbers or beneilciaries currently receivingbenefit payments 74

lnactive plan members entitled to but not yet receivingbenefit payments

Active plan rrembers 258
'Iotal participants coveled by OPEB plan E_

Contribuliorts - The Town has not adopted a formal policy but has historically contributed $50,000 to the trust annually and

intends to continue to fund $50,000 annually until such tirne that a forrnal policy is adopted.
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Net OPEB Liuhilit.y -The Town's net OPEB liability of $45,945,045 was measured as of January 1,2021 , rolled foru,ard to the

rreasllrelreltt date and using the following actuarial assulxptions, applied to allperiods included itr tlre rrreasurenrent:

Actuarial Assumptions - The collective net OPEB liability was based on the following actuarial assunrptions:

lnflation: 2.2%oper year, based on crlrrent econornic data, analyses fi'orrr econornists and other experts,

and pt'ofessional judgernent.
Discount rate 2.06%, net of investrnent expenses, including inflation.
Salary increases: 5.6 oh average, including inflation
I-lealthcare cost trend rare:7.00o/o for 2021 , decreasing 0.4oh per year to 5.4%o then grading down to an ultitnate trend

rate of 4Yo, utilizing the Society of Actuaries Getzen Medial Trend Model. The ultirnate
medial inflation rate is reached in 207 5.

The rnortality tables used in the developrnent of the total OPEB liability include the following:

Mortality Rates: Pre-Retirement: PubG-2010 headcount-weighted Employee General Momality Tables, projected with
fully generational rnortality improvernent using scale MP-20 19.

Healthy Retirees: l0l% of PubG-2010 headcount-weighted Retiree General Mortality Tables for rnales and l09ohof
PubG-2010 headcount-weighted Retiree General Mortality Tables for fernales, projected with fully generational

rnortality inrprovement using scale MP-2019

Surviving spouses: PubG-2O10 Contingent Survivor Mortality Tables, projected with fully generational rnortality
improvement using scale MP-2019.

Disabled Retirees: PubG-2010 Disabled General Mortality Tables, projected with fully generational mortality
improvement using scale MP-2019.

Lottg-term Rutes of Return - The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investment was deterrnined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OPEB plan

investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-tenn
expected late ofreturn by weighting the expected future real rates ofreturn by the target asset allocation percentage provided in

the investrnent policy statement and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each rnajor

asset class included in the target asset allocation as of December 31,2021 are sumrnarized below:

Tarpt Long-term Expected

Asset Class Allocation Real Rates of Return

Domestic Equity

Fixecl Income

International Equity

Alternative

Cash and Equivalents

Total

34.00o/o

24.000i"

22.00Yo

20.00%

0.00%
r 00.00%

534%
t.56%
6.10%

4.21Yo

0.00%

Discottrtt Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 2.06%. The projection of caslr flows used to

deterrnine the discount rate assumed that ernployer contributions from the Town will be made in accordance with the plan's
funding policy. Based on those assurnptions, the OPEB Plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be insufficient to make all
projected benefit payments of current plan mernbers. Therefore,the2.06%o municipal bond rate was applied to all periods to
deterrnine the total OPEB liabilitv.
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Changes in the net OPEB liability:

TOWN OF SALEM, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31,2021

Governmental Activities
Increase

Plan

Fiduciary
Net Position

Total OPEB

Liability
OPEB liability beginning of year

Changes for the year:

Service cost

Interest

Differences between expected and

actual experience

Changes ofassumptions
Contributions - employer

Net investment income

Benefit payments

OPEB liability end of year

OPEB liability beginning of year

Changes for the year:

Service cost

Interest

Differences between expected and

actual experience

Changes of assumptions

Contributions - employer

Net investment income

Benefit payments

OPEB liability end of year

$ 37,395,093 $

792,652

800,1 l4

5,664,437
2,004,609

972,993

3,534
(892,993) (892,993)

_$ 45J$9n_ _q_quit_

Net OPEB

LiabiliW

$ 37,395,093

792,652

800, I 14

5,664,437

2,004,609
(972,993)

(3,534)

$ 45,680,378

Business-type Activities & Proprietary Funds

Increase (Decrease

Total OPEB

Liability

Plan

Fiduciary
Net Position

Net OPEB

Liability
$ 174,407 $

14,668

3,979

tt9,3t2
(23,998)

(2,817)

$ 285,551

s 17 4,407

t4,668
3,979

22,817

884

(2,817)

$ 20,884

tt9,3t2
(23,998)

(22,817)
(884)

$ 264,667

Sensitivity of the Town's Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - The following presents the net OPEB liability
calculated using the current discount rate of 2.06oh, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate I -percentage point lower ( I .06%) or I -percentage point higher (3 .06%) than the current rate:

Discount Rate

Activities lolo Decrease B 2.06% lolo Increase

Governmental $ 56,558,042

Business-type $ 327,691
$ 45,680,378 $37,728,743

s 264,667 $ 218,596

Sensitivity of the Town's OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcure Cost Trend Rates - The following presents the net

OPEB liability calculated using the cunent healthcare cost trend rates as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were

calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are I -percentage point lower (6Yo year I decreasing to 3%) or I -percentage point
higher (8o/o year I decreasing to 5%o) than the cunent healthcare cost trend rates:

Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

Activities lo% Decrease Baseline 7.00% lolo Increase

Governmental

Business-type
$36,542,431
g 211,723

$ 45,680,378

s 264,667
$ 57,981,187

$ 335,937

52



TOWN OF SALEM, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED

DECEMBER 3],2021

OPEB E.rpense, De.ferred Outflors of Resources, and Deferred Inflotus rtf Resources Relutel to OPEIJ - For the year ended

Decerrber'31,2021, the Town lecognized OPE,B expense of $3,665,175. k Decenrber 31,2021 , the -l'own reported deferred
outflows of resources and defelled inflows of resonrces related to OPEB fi'orn the fbllowing sources:

13usiness-t1' p e Activit ics

Governmental Activities & I)roprietarf i]unds

Def-erred

Outflorvs of
Resources

Del'crrcd

lnf'lows of
Resoulces

Deltlrcd
Outlloii's o1'

Rcsolrrccs

[)el'clrcd

Inflou,s of
Rcsources

Net dil'ltrence betrveen plo.jectecl and actual investmenl

earnings on OPEB plan investments $

Changes in assumptions

Dil-ferenccs betrveen expected and actual experience

Total

8,47 t,942
6,038,699

$ 34t

t.706.t28 39.5t2
28.t64

$ $ 85

7,957

$ 14,510,641 $ r,706,469 $ 67.676 $ 8,042

Amounts reporled as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in
OPEB expense as follows;

Business-ty p e

Fiscal Year Ending Governmental Activities &
December 31, Activities Proprietary Funds Total

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

Thereafter

Totals

$ 2,048,705

2,048,70s

2,21'7,443

2,673,664

1,997 ,940
1,817 ,714

9,542

9,542

10,327

12,453
q-los

8,466

$ 2,058,24'l

2.058.247

2,22'7.170

2,686.1t7
2,007.24s

I,826, r 80

$

$ r2,804,r7r $ 59,635 $ r2,863.806

NOTE 19 _ ENCUMBRANCE,S

The outstanding encumbrances are amounts needed to pay any commitments related to purchase orders and contracts that remain
unperfonned at Decernber 31,2021 and are as follows:

General fund:

General government

Public safety

Fliglrways and streets

Sanitatior-r

Culture and recreation

Capital outlay

Total encumbrances $ 589, r 25

$ 48,4 r7

301,871

30.586

1 0,566

5.226

192.459

53



TOWN OF SALEM, NEW HAMPSHIIIE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED

DECEMBER 31,2O2I

NOTE 20 - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES, BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES,
AND FIDUCIARY FUNDS NET POSITION

Net position reporled on the governmeutal and business-type activities, and fiduciary firnds Stateurents of Net Position at
Decerrber 31,2021 include the following:

Governrrent-rvide Financial Statement s

Govemrrental

Activitics
Busincss-ty p e

Act ivities

Conrp onent

[Jnit

Fiduciary

Fundsl-ot al

Net iuvcstment in capital assets:

Net book value. all capital assets

I-ess:

General obligation bonds payable

Urrarrrort izcd hontl prerniunrs

Capital leases payable

Total net investrnent in capital assets

Restlicted net p osition:

Perpetual care - nonexpendable

Perpetual care - expendable

Grants ancl donations

Police forfeiture
Librarl,

Water

Server

Salerr Council on Aging

OPIIR trust
Total restricted net position

Unrestlictecl
'l-otal net position

$ 83,067,800 $44,984.639 $ r28.052.439 $ $

(4,276,360)

(332,2e6)

(94 r ,488)

( r r,445.043)
(332,546)

(t5.72t.403)
(664,842)

(94 r.488)

77,517,656 33,207,050 t 10.724.',706

534,307

223,532

408,123

r 07,608

79,270

534.307
)) 7 ;7)
408. r 23

r07,608
'7q )'7 (\

2,725,506

3.979,036

2,725,506

3,979,036

7 t'7.924

I nd ivicluals. organ izat ions. and ot her governmer 5,015,752

r04,4r8
1,3s2,840 6,704j42 8.057,382 7t'7.924 5,120,170

(55,906,r8r) (55.906,r8r)

$22,964.315 $39,9il,592 $ 62,87s.907 $ 7t7,924 $ 5,120,170

NOTE 21 _ GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES

Governrnental fund balances reported on the fund financial staterxents at December 31,2021 include the following

Capital Total
General Pro.jects Nonma.ior Governmental

Fund Fund Funcis Funds

Nonspe n dabl e:

Prepaid items

l'ax deeded property
Permanent fund - principal balance

Total nonspendable fund balance

Restri cted:

Bond p roceccls

Permtrnent - income balance

Grants and clonations

Police florf'eiture

Librarl,

Cap ital p ro.jccts

Total rcstricted {'und balance

$ $

955,825

$ 263,494

1 5 8,024

$

534.307

534.307

263,494

r 58,024

534,30',7

421,5t8

6) ))9
223.532

408. I 23

r 07.608
^t9.270

62,229

223,s32

408,t23
107,608
'79.270

262.691262.69t
62.229 262.69t U 18.533 1.143.453
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TOWN OF SALEM, NE'Y HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31,2O2I

Got,arnmetttcrI /ilncl baIqnces continued:

Corn m itted:
Expcndablc trusts

MetLil-e investments lhir market value ad.justrr

Cable TV
CDBC
Conservat ion

Fire outside details

Police outside details

Recrcat ion

lnrpact lccs

Total committed f'und balance

Assign ed:

Encumbrances

Contingency

Total assigned I'und balance

Unassigned

Total governmental f'und balances

Gene ral

Iruncl

Cap ital
l) ro.jccl s

I:r u I.tcl

Nonnra.ior

Funds

'l-otal

G overnnrental

Funcls

3.403.32',7

I I 5.583

422.951

r98

8 t9.941

25,460

827.036

r 63"650

4.301, r 28

3.403,32'7

I 15,583

422,951

r98

8 r9,94 r

25_460

827,036

t 63,650

4,301,t28
3,5 I 8,91 0 6.560,364 10,0'79,2',74

589. r 25

4,54t,250
589,125

4,s4t,250
5, I 30,375

r 3,9s0,873

5, l 30,375

r 3,950,873

$23,083,905 $262"691 57,913,204 $ 31,259,800

NOTE 22 _ PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

Netposition/fundbalanceatJanuary 1,2021 wasrestatedtogiveretroactiveefi'ecttothefollowingpriorperiodadjustments:

Governmental Business{ype Capital

Activities Activities Pro.ject Fund

Proprietary Funds

1'o reclassify capital projects

betrveerr governmental act ivit ies

and ploprietary funds

To recold n-riscellaneous

rounding variances

Net position fund balance (deficit),

as previously reported

Water Server Total

(6,523) S1,387,122 $ r,380,599

28.856.745 8,383,613 37,240,358

Net position fund balance (deficit),

as restated $ 19,876,943 $ 38,620,957 $ (1.550.637) $28.850,222 $9,'770,735 $38,620,957

NOTE 23 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The Town is exposed to valious risks of loss related to tofts; theft of, darnage to, or destruction of assets; errors or omissions;
injuries to employees; or natural disasters. During fiscal year 202l,the Town was a rnernber of the New Hampshire Public Risk
Management Exchange (Primex3) Workers' Compensation and Property/Liability Prograrns.

The New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange (Prirnex3) Workers' Cornpensation and Property/Liability Programs are

pooled risk rnanagement programs under RSAs 5-B and 281-A. Coverage was provided fi'orn January 1,2021 to December 31,

2021 by Primex3, which retained $1,000,000 of each workers'compensation loss, $500,000 of each liability loss, and $200,000
of each property loss. The Board has decided to self-insure the agglegate exposure and has allocated funds based on actuarial
analysis for that purpose. The workers' corrrpensation section of the self-insul'ance mernbership agreement perrnits Primex3 to
rnake additional assesslxents to rnembers should there be a deficiency in contributions for any rnember year, not to exceed the

rrember's annual contribution. GASB Staternent No. l0 requires nrernbers of a pool with a sharing risk to disclose if such an

$ (1,380,599) $ r,380,599 $ (r,380.599) $

(35) - (35)

2t,257 .s77 37 ,240,3s8 ( I 70.003)
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TOWN OF SALEM, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31,2021

assessment is probable, and a reasonable estimate of the amount, if any. ln 2021the Town paid $490,291 and $997,229
respectively, to Primex for property, liability and worker's compensation. At this time, Primex3 foresees no likelihood of any

additional assessment for this or any prior year.

The Town continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not
exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any ofthe past three fiscal years.

NOTE 24 _ CONTINGENCIES

The Town is a defendant in various claims and suits. Although the outcome of these claims and suits is not presently

determinable, in the opinion of the Town's legal counsel, the resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect

on the financial condition of the Town of Salem.

The Town participates in various federal grant programs, the principal of which are subject to program compliance audits
pursuant to the Single Audit Act as amended. Accordingly, the Town's compliance with applicable grant requirements will be

established at a future date. The amount of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be

determined at this time, although the Town anticipates such amounts, if any, will be immaterial.

NOTE 25 _ COVID-I9

As a result of the spread of COVID- I 9, Coronavirus, economic uncertainties continue. The duration of these uncertainties and

the ultimate financial effects cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.

The Town was allotted a total of $3,118,810 in federal funding from the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA)
in2021. A total of $1,559,405 or 50o/o of the funding was receivedin202l. The remainder is expected to be received in2022.
Eligible uses of these funds include pandemic response or its negative impacts, workforce/personnel, including payroll and

hazardlpremium pay, provision of government services to the extent of reduced revenue and necessary water, sewer and

broadband investment. For the year ended December 31,2021 the Town spent none of the funds received. The remaining funds

are included in deferred inflows of resources until eligible expenditures have been made.

The full extent of the financial impact cannot be determined as of the date of the financial statements.

NOTE 26 - TAX ABATEMENTS

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures, defines tax abatements as a reduction
in tax revenues that results from an agreement between one or more governments and an individual or entity in which (a) one or
more governments promise to forgo tax revenues to which they are otherwise entitled and (b) the individual or entity promises to
take a specific action after the agreement has been entered into that contributes to economic development or otherwise beneflts

the governments or the citizens of those governments.

The Town did not have any such agreements for 2021.

NOTE 27 -SUBSEQaENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date, but before the financial statements are

issued. Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provided additional evidence about conditions that existed

at the balance sheet date, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the financial statements. Nonrecognized
subsequent events are events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the balance sheet date, but arose after

the date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through December 14, 2022, the date the December 37, 2021 financial
statements were available to be issued, and the following occurred that requires recognition or disclosure:

At the March 8,2022 Annual Town election, the following articles were approved:

Warrant Article No. 8, authorizing the Town to issue $6,750,000 of bonds or notes for the soil and groundwater
remediation of the former Wastewater Treatment Facility.
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TOWN OF SALEM, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31,2021

Wal'r'ant Article No. 10, authorizing the Tor.vn to issue $l of bonds ol'notes for construction and construction
engineering for the replacernent of the Bridge Street Blidge over the Spicket River, NHDOT Blidge No. 115/097, a

Town owned and rnaintained bridge witlr critical deficiencies and linited loading capacity.

Additionally, the Town issued bonds for $73,308 fol stornrwater planning (2020 Warrant Article No. 11) and $28,104 for
wastewater asset rnanagemenl (2020 Warrant Article No. l2) in 2022. ln June of 2022 both of these loans were 100%

forgiven by the State of New Hampshire. ln July, 2022the Town issued a bond anticipation note for $6,698,000 related to
the soil and groundwater ren.rediation of the folmer wastewater treatment facility project.
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EXHIBIT G
TOWN OF SALEM, NEI'Y HAMPSHIRE

Scltedule of tlte Town's Propotiionate Sltare of Net Pension Liability
New Hampsltire Retirement System Cost Sltaing Multiple Employer DeJined BeneJit Plan

For tlte Fi scal Year Ended December 3 l, 202 I
Unaudited

Fiscal vear-end

M easurement date

Town's:

Proportion ofthe net

pension liability

Proportionate share of the net

pension liabiltiy

Covered payroll

Proportionate share olthe net

pension liability as a percentage

of its covered payroll

Plan fiduciary net position

as a percentage ofthe
total pension liability

249.46% 213.99o/o 218.2'7%

59.81% 66.32%

296.78o/o 258.2'7Yo 243.t5y. 235.250 301.33%

December 3 1,

20t3

.lune 30,

2013

0.96%

$ 4 r,28 r,824

$ r6,548,303

December 31,

2014

June 30,

2014

l.jlYr

$ 37,80 r,337

s l7,665,t64

December 31,

2015

June 30,

20t5

t.00%

$ 39,790,897

$ r8,230,2 il

December 3 l,
2016

June 30,

2016

0.99o/n

$ 52,8 r 4,323

$ 17,795,5 r9

December 31,

2017

.lune 30,

2017

0.97%

s 47,877.646

$ r8,538.0 r8

December 3 l.
20t8

June 30"

2018

0.97%

s 46.779.743

$ r9,239,0 r 7

December 31,

2019

.lune 30,

2019

0.98%

$ 47. r 86.946

$ 20,057-803

December 3 l.
2020

.lune 30"

2020

0.94yo

$ 59"824.3 r6

$ r9.85_j.485

58.72%

Decernber 3l
2021

.lune 30.

2021

0.92Yo

$ 40.70ti.5 t I

:ii 20.499. t l5

198.59Vo

72.220465.47o/o 58.30% 62.66% 64.73Yo 65j9%



EXHIBIT H
TOWN OF SALEM, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Schedule ofTown Contributions - Pensions

New HanEslire Retirement Systent CosT Sltaring Multiple Employer DeJined BeneJit Plan

For tlte Fiscal Year Ended December 3 l , 202 1

Unaudiletl
a
o
z
o
(D

o
(D
.o

.D
o-
U)

.D

Jo

-
+o'
5

o
tl1 5\ol

o

o

-

q
D

o
OaI

lD
.+

q

o
(D

o

Fiscal year-end

M easurment date

Contractually required

contrihut ions

Contributions in relation

to the contractually

required contribut ions

Contribution deficiency (excess)

1-own's covered p ay roll

Contributions as a percentage

olcovered payroll

Dscember 3 l,
2013

.lune 30,

2013

2.385,09 l

December 3 l,
2014

.lune 30,

20t4

December 31,

2015

.lune 30,

201 5

December 3l
2016

.lune 30,

20t6

December 3l
20t7

.lune 30,

2017

December 31.

2020

.lune 30.

2020

Dccember 3I,
202t

December 3 l, December 3 l

2018 2019

.lune 30,

201 8

.lune 30,

2019

.lune i 0.

2021

$2,385,091 $3,267,177 $3,369,755 $3,556,439 $3,s66,426 $4,106,124 54.267.740 $4.r55.07i $4.(rri9.4e2

$

3,267.t77 3,369,755 3.556.439 3.566,426 4.t06,t24 4.267.740 4.155.07_l .1.6ti9..192

$-$-$$-$$$-.$
$16,548,303 $17,665,164 $18,230,211 $17,795,s19 $18,538,018 $19.239.0r7 $20.057.803 $r9,ri53.4n5 $20.917.5i9

14.41% 18.50% 18.48% 19.99% t9.24% 2t.34% 2t.28% 20.93% 22.39"/n



TOWN OF SALEM, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTE TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION _

PENSION LIABILITY

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31,202]

Schedule of the Town's Proporliotrtfte Shore of Nel Pensiotr Lifiility ond
Schedule of Totun Contributions - Pe nsions

Cltunges in BeneJit Ternts - There were no changes in benefit tenns for the current period.

Changes in Assumptiorrs - There were no clranges in assumptions for the current period.

Methods ottd Assumptious Used to Delermine Contribulion Rates - A full list of the methods and assumptions used to
deterrnine the contribution rates can be found in the rnost l'ecent actual'ial valuation repoft. This report can be located at

www.nhrs.org.

As required by GASB StatementNo.68, and as amended by GASB StatelnentNo. Tl, Exhibits G andH representthe actuarial

detennined costs associated with the Town's pension plan at December 31,2021. These schedules are presented to illustrate the

requirementtoshowinformationforl0years. However,until afull 10-yeartrendiscompiled,infonnationispresentedforthose
years for which information is available.
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EXHIBIT I
TOWN OF SALEM, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Schedule of the Town's Proporlionate Sltare of the Na Oflter Postemployment BeneJi.ts Liability
New Hampshire Retirement System Cort Sharing Multiple Employer DeJined BeneJit Plan

For tlte Fiscal Year Ended December 3l, 2021

Unauclited

Fiscal vear-end

Measurement date

Town's proportion of the net OPEB liability

Town's proportionate share of the net OPEB

liability (asset)

Town's covered payroll

Town's proportionate share of the net OPEB

liability (asset) as a percentage of its covered payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage ofthe total
OPEB liability

December 31,

2016

.lune 30.

20t6

0.83%

$ 3,994,098

$ 17,795,519

22.44%

5.21o/o

December 3 l,
2017

June 30,

2017

0.80o/o

$ 3,669,2t4

$ 18,538,018

19.79%

7.91%

December 31.

2018

.lune 30.

2018

1.20%

$ 5,514,957

$ 19,239,0t7

28.67%

7.53%

December 31.

2019

June 30,

2019

1.22%

$ 5,355,517

$20,057,803

26.70%

7.75%

December 3 l.
2020

.lune 30.

2020

1.07%

s 4J02,826

$ r9,853,485

23.69%

7.74%

Dcccrnbcr 3l
202t

.lurrc 30.

202t

1.050/.

$ 4.217,349

$20.499,r r5

20.57%

|.06%
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EXHIBIT J
TOWN OF SALEM, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Scltedule of Town Contri butions - Otlter Posemployment BeneJits

New Hampsltire Retirement System Cost Sltaring Multiple Employer DeJined BeneJit Plan

Fortlte Fiscal Year Ended December3I, 2021

Unaudited

Fiscal year-end

Measurement date

Contractually required contribution

Contributions in relation to the contractually

required contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

Town's covered payroll

Contributions as a percentage ofcovered payroll

December 31,

20t6

.lune 30,

20t6

$

December 31,

2017

J une 30,

2017

December 3 I,
20r8

June 30,

20r8

$

December 31,

20t9

.lune 30,

2019

December 3 l-
2020

.lune 30-

2020

Dccember 31.

2021

.lune 30-

2021

$ 479,403 $ 475,63r $ s32,806 $ ss7,477 $ 498.715 $ 48r.163

479,403 475,631 532,806 557,477 498.71 5 48 r.1 63

s$ $ $

$17,79s,519 $18,538,0r8 519,239,017 $20,057,803 $20,499,r r5 $20,947,s39

2.69% 2.57% 2.77% 2.78% 2.43% 2.30%



EXHIBIT K
TOWN OF SALEIIT, NEW TIAJVIPSTIIRE

Scheiulc of Chnnges in the Town's Net Other Postentplolttlltrlll Benefits Linbility nnl go,,trnd Rtttios

Retiree Hetlth Benefit Progrnnt

For the Fiscnl Yenr Etrded Decenilter 3 I, 202 I
Unauditerl

December'31.

20 r8 2019 2020 202t

$ 34,442,040 $ 31,346.357 $32.369.229 $ 37.569.500'l-otal OI'Dl liabilitl,. beginning of year'

Changes filr thc 1'car:

Selvice cost

I nt erest

Changes to beneflt ternrs

Diff'erences betrveen expected and

actual expelience

Changes of assumptions

Change in actuarial cost rnethod

Benefit pay nlents

Total OPEB liability, end of year

Town's net OPEB liability, end of year

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage ofthe
total OPEB Iiability

Covered payroll

73 8,885

1,t96,371

(4,22s,561)

(805,378)

654,736

t,299,066
(8, r 06,088)

1,767 ,666
6,040,596

6'72.062

894.648

4.413.311

807,320

804.093

5.783,749

1.980.61 I

Plan fidr"rciary net position. beginningof year $

Changes for the year:

Contributions - employer

Net investment income

Benefit payments

Plan ficluciary net position, end of year

(633, r04) (779,8 r0) (895,8 r 0)

$ 31,346,357 $32,369,229 $ 37,569,500 546,049,463

$

805,378

(805,378)

$$

633,104

(63 3, 1 04)

779,810

(779,810)

995,8 r 0

4,418
(8e5,8 r 0)

$ $ 104,4 I 8

s 31,346,3s7 532,369,229 S 37,s69,500 $ 45,945,045

$$

0.00Yo

x; I 8,879,190

166.04010

0.00Yr

$ 20, r 68,260

160.50%

0.00%

$ 20,8 r 3,862

r 80.50%

0.23o/o

s20,953,271

219.27YrNet OPIIB liability as a percentage of covered payroll

The Notes to the Required Supplernentary Information - Other Posternployrnent Benefit Liability is an integral part of this
schedule.
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EXHIBIT L
TOWN OF SALEM, NEW HA]I,IPSHIRE

Sch crlu I e d Town Contri buti ons - OPEB

Retiree Health Benefil Ptogrant

For lhe Fi scnl Year Ettded Decenfier -i l, 202 I
Unnulited

A ctuarially det errnined

contribut ions

Contributions in relation

to the actuarially

deternrined contributions

Contribution deficiency (excess)

Torvn's covered p ay roll

Contributions as a percentage

of covered p ay roll

Decenrbcr' 3l

201 8 2019 2020 202t

s 2,622,772 $ 2,516,876 S 2,28'1.027 $ 2.529.590

805,378 633,104 7',|9.810 995.8 r 0

$ 1,817,394 $ 1,883,772 $ r.507,2r7 $ r,533.780

$r8,879,190 520,t68,260 $20,8r3,862 $20,953.27t

4.27% 3.140 3.75% 4.75yo

The Notes to the Required Supplernentary lnforrnation - Other Posternployment Benefit Liability is an integlal part of this
schedule.
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TOWN OF SALEM, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION -
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT LIABILITY

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 3],202]

Schetlule of the Town's Proportiorrttte Shtre o.f Net Other Postentploltnrcnt Berre.fils LinhilitJt unl
Schedule o.f Town Contributiorts - Otlrer Postemploynrcnl Bene.fits (NHRS Plun)

Chtnges in Benefil Ternrs - There were no changes in benefit terrns for the current period.

Cltunges in Assurnpliorrs - There were no changes in assumptions for tlre current period.

X4ethorls and Assuntptiorts Used lo Deternine Conlrihutiou Rules - A full list of the rnethods and assutnptions used to
deterrnine the contribution rates can be found in the rnost recent actual'ial vah"ration report. This report can be located at

www.nhrs.org.

As lequired by GASB Statement No. 75, Exhibits I and i l'epresent the actuarial detennined costs associated with the Town's
otlrer posternployment benefits at December 31,2021 . These schedules are presented to illustrate the requilentent to show

infornration for l0 years. Llowever, until a full 10-year tlend is compiled, infonnation is presented for those years for which
in folmation is available.

Schedule of Changes in Town's Net Other Postemployment Benefits Liobility rmd Reloted Rntios nnd

Schedule of Town Contributions - Other Postemployment Benefits (Retiree Health Benefit Plan)

Changes in BeneJil Ternts - There were no changes in benefit terms for the curent period.

Changes in Assumptiorrs - The discount rate changed fron 2.12o/o as of December 31 ,2020 to 2.060/o as of December 31,2021.
In addition many other assumptions were updated, including decrernents, the inflation rate, healthcare trend rates, and rnortality
tables and rnortality irnprovement rates. A Summary of the irnpact on the total OPEB Liability of each assurnption change is

provided below:

lncreases due to change in decrements: $827,000
Increase due to change in inflation assumption: $146,000
Decrease due to change in trend assumptions: ($1,519,000)

Increase due to change in rnortality tables and

mortality improvement rates: $1,975,000
Increase due to change in discount rate: $551,000

As required by GASB Staternent No. 75, Exhibit K and L represents the actuarial deterrnined costs associated with the Town's
other postemployment benefits at December 31,2021. The schedule is presented to illustrate the requiretnent to show

inforrnation for 10 years. However, until a full l0-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which

inforrnation is available.
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SCHEDULE I
TOLYN OF SALEI},I, NELY HAX4PSHIRE

Itltlor General Fund
Schedule d Eslinnted und Acturtl Revenues (Non-GAAP Budgelory Bnsis)

Forthe Fiscol Year Etried Decen$er -ll, 2021

Est imated Aclual

Taxes:

Prop erty

Yielcl

Payn.rent in lieu of taxes

Other

Interest and penalties on t&\es

Total fl'om taxes

Licenses, permits, and fees:

Business licenses, permits, and fees

M otor vehicle permit fees

Building pemrits

Other

Total from licenses, permits, and fees

I ntergovernment al:

State:

Meals and rooms distribution
Highway block grant

Federal:

Other

T otal from intergovernmental

Charges for services:

Income from depaftments

M iscellaneous:

Sale of municipal property
Interest on investments

Other

Total from miscellaneous

Other financing sources :

Transfers in

Bond proceeds

Total other financing sources

Total revenues and other financing sources

Unassigied fund balance used to reduce tax rate

Total revenues, other financing sources, and use offund balance

Variance

Posit ive

(Negal ive)

$ 32.7(r5,896

5.990

8 r- r09

30.241

262.653

3t.664.667 33,r45.889 t.48t.222

$3r.33r,667
3.000

75.000

25.000

230.000

s t.434.229

2,990

6.1 09

5.24t

32,653

75,050

6,600,000

1,030,000

220.515

55,205

7,233.488

1,829,040

343.880

( r 9.845)

63 3,488
'799,040

t23,365

7 ,925,s6s 9,461,6t3 I ,536,048

2,256,695

652,161

2,256,69s

651.996 (r65)

(66,872)200,000 r33.r28
3,1 08,856 3,04 r,8 r 9 (67,037)

2,458.907 3,037,660 578,753

200,000

20,000

1,172,595

296,302

19,894

898,000

96,302
(106)

(274,595)

1,392,595 t,214,196 (178,399)

553,302

75,000

6l 8,095 64,793

(75,000)

628,302 618,095 (10,207)

$ 50,519,272 $ 3,340,38047,178,892

2.179.265

$ 49,358, r 57

See Independent Auditor's Report
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SCIIEDULE 2

7'OlyN OF SAI-EX4, NEllt Ilrttt'IPSIIlRE
NItt.jor Gertcntl Fuud

Schelule of Appnryriutions, E-\penditures, utrrl Ettuttnbrurtccs (Notr-GAill'Butlgetu+, Bx5is)

Forthe Fisctl Yeor Etriled Dccctttltcr -ll, 2021

[:ncrrnrbelcd

Ihnr Plior
Year'

[:ncuntbcl'cd

to Subscqucnt

Appropliations ljxpcncliturcs Ycar

Valiance

Pos it ive

(Negative)

Cur|ent:

Gencral Sovemurent:
Exccut ivc

Elect ion ancl registlation

F inancial administ rat ion

Revaluation of p rop erty

Legal

Personnel administration

Planning and zoning

General government buildings

Cemetelies

lnsulance, not otherwise allocated

Other
'Iotal general governnent

Public safety:

Police

Fire

Building inspection

Total public saf'ety

Highways arld streets:

Adrninistration
Highways and streets

Street lighting

Total highways and streets

Sanitation:

Solid waste disposal

Health:

Pest control

Welfare:

Administration and direct assistance

Vendor payments and other

Total wellare

Culture and recreation:

Parks and recreation

Library

Patriotic purposes

Other

Total culture and recreation

Debt service:

Principal of long-term debt

Interest on long-term debt

Interest on tax anticipation notes

Other

l-otal clebl service

9,1 87

l9.l4l
4,28r1

103.245

2.542

r 3.061

r8.08 t

5.986

$ 639.924

253.3211

2.534.442

275.000

r 48,700

r.868.356

6l 1.359

t92,503

5',71.099

4t2,153
688.664

$ 560.37r

255.04 I

2.525.t6'/
14ti.206

r 68.036

2.317.806

6 r6.878

215"991

626.159

414.400

55 1,088

7'7.t75
(t,743)

262.858

t26,794
( r e,336)

(450,074)

(5,5 r 9)

( r 6,843)

(48,e80)

( r 6,040)

234,835

$ $ 2.378 $

30

5-7 r5

624

2s9.298

395. r 59 8. r95.528 8,399, r43 48,4t',1 t43,127

63,258

380,707

31,250

12.496,599

13.727.702

895.720

t 1.293.039

t3,967.8',13
'197,881

I 04,585

197,286

t,162,233
(56,750)

129,089

475,215 27,t20,02t 26,0s8.793 30r.87r 1,234,s72

48,289

93,2s8

5 r 9,650

2,988,80 r

606,693

456,208

2,840,503

655,441

r9.686

r 0,900

63,442

176,901

33,6 r 0

t4t,s47 4,115.144 3,952,152 30,586 273,953

11,434 r.037,3r8 t,r33,462 10,566 (9s,276)

r0 r,005 24,689 76.3t6

t67,649

I I 3,500

t3t,492
I 05,750

36,15'7
'7,750

28t,t49 237,242 43,907

8,488 608.287

1,611,948

23,250

42.616

457.104

t.402.720

11,420

53. r 58

I 55,488

209,228

I t,830
( r r,585)

4.1 83

1.043

8,488 2.286,t0t t,924,402 5.226 364.961

708,500

216,5t5
I

50,250

678.427

194.033

2s0

30,073

22,482

I

50,000

97 5.266 I 02.556

See lndependent Auditor's Report.
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SCHEDULE 2 (Continued)
TOWN OF SALEfuI, NE'Y HAMPSHIRE

Mnjor Generol Fund
Schedule of Approprintious, E-rpenditures, ortd Ertcuntbronces (Non-GAAP Budgetn4t Bnsis)

Forthe Fiscnl Yeor Ettded December3l, 2021

Encumbered

liom Plior
Year App rop riations

Encumbered

to Subsequent

Expenditures Year

Variance

Positive
(Negative)

Capital outlay

Other financing uses

Transfers out

892.772 t.485.948 t.946.266 192.459 239,995

3,760,677 3,760.677

Total approp riations, exp enditures,

otherfinancinguses, and encumbrances 51,924,615 $ 49,358.157 $48,309,536 $ 589,125 $ 2,384,111

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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SCHEDULE.]
TOWN OF SALEM, NEW HATIPSHIRE

Mu.ior Geneutl Fund
Schctlule o.f Chtrrges in Unnssigrrerl Fund Bulunce

For the Fiscol Yetr Errded Decen$er 3 I, 202 I

U nass igned lirncl balarrce. begin n ing (N on-G A A P llud-eet ar1, Bas is )

Changes:

Unassigred f'und balance used lo reduce 2021 tax rate

2021 Budget sumnraly:

Revenue surplus (Schedule l)
Unexp ended balance of ap p rop riat ions (Schedule 2)

2021 Budget surplus

Increase in nonspendable fund balance

Decrease in restricted J'und balance

Inclease in assigned (non-encurnbrance) hrnd balance

Unassigred fund balance, ending (Non-GAAP Budgetaly Basis)

Reconciliotiot, on NuI-GAAP Budgetury Bosis to GAAP Basis

To record deferred property taxes not collected rvithin 60 days ofthe
fiscal year-end, not recogrized on a budgetary basis

Elimination of the allorvance for uncollectible taxes

Unassigned fund balance, ending GAAP basis (Exhibit C-l)

$ 3,340,380

2.384.1 r r

$ r2,475,898

(2,179,26s)

5,724,49t

( r 85,445)

20,743

( l,4 r 0,900)

14,445,522

(588,056)

93,407

$ I 3,950,873

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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SCI.IEDULE 4

TOIYN OF SALE]II, NEIY HAMPSHIRE
N on nr$or G ovem nrnln I Fu n ds

C otrrbi rt i n g B ol o n cc S lr eet

Decetrthtr 31, 2021

Special Revenue Funds

Conselvat ion
( ablc TV CDBG Cornrrrission

Fire

Outsidc
Detail

Grants and

Donat ions

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

I n vest r.nent s

Receivables. net of allowance lbr uncollectable

Accounts

Intergovefnlneutal receivables

Total assets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFI.OWS OF
RESOURCLS AND FUND BAT,ANCES

Li abi I iti es:

Accounts payable

Accrued salaries and benefits

Interfund p ay able

Total liabilities

Deferred i nfl ows of resou rces

Unavailable revenue - grants

Fund balances:

Nonspendable

Restricted

Committed

Total fund balances

Total liabilit ies. deferred infl ows

ofresources, and f'und balances

$297.8r5 $ r98 $ 8r9,94r 521,537 5t,928,2t6

1 49.1 55 3,923

40,3t2

$446,970 $ r98 $ 819,941 $25,460 $ r,968,528

s 20,029 $

3,990
$ $ $ I,ooo

24,019 I,000

1,559,405

408,123

422,951 198 819,941 25,460

422,951 I 98 8 I 9,941 25,460 408,123

$446,970 $r98 $ 8r9,941 52s,460 $r,968,528



Sp ecial l:-uncls

Police

Forf'eiture

Policc

Outside

Details

Impact

Fees

Permanent

Fund

s ts,423
7',7 1.538

TotalIlecreatiorr l-ibrary

$ 163,965 579.270$ 107,608 $ 632.564

2t3.928 367,006

40,312

$ r07,608 $846,492 $ 163,965 579,270 $4,733,403 $786,961 $9,978,796

$ 4,733.403 $ 8,799,940

771,538

$ $ $ $$ 3r5 $

432,27s 29,'t22

$ 2t,344
23,446

461,397

t9,4s6

19,456 315 432,2'7 5 29,t22 506,187

|,s59,405

107,608 79,270

82'7,036 r 63,650 4,301,t28

107,608 827,036 163,650 79,270 4,301,128 757,839 '7,913,204

$ r07,608 $846,492 $ 163,965 $79,270 $ 4,733,403 $786,961 $9,978,796

See lndependent Auditor's Reporl
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SCHEDALE 5

TOWN OF SALEM, NEIY IUMPSHIRE
N on major G ovem mental Fu nds

Combining Schedale ofRevenues, Expenditurcs, and Changes in Fund Balances

Forthe Fiscal Year Ended December 31,2021

Special Revenue Funds

CableTV CDBG

Grants and

Donations

$ $ 1,900 $ $

257,523 395,134

587,424

51,758

l5 30,587

587,424 257,523 2,580 5t,773 425,721

47r,905 22,468

393,649

10,741

48,245

255,272

12,234

183,255

255,272 195,489 48,245 426,858

1 15,519 2,25t (192,909) 3,528 (1,137)

Conservation

Commission

Fire

Outside

Detail

Revenues:

Taxes

Intergovernmental

Charges for services

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:

General government

Public safety

Culture and recreation

Conservation

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures

Other financing uses:

Transfers out

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances (deficit), beginning

Fund balances, ending $ r98 $ 819,941 $ 25,460 $ 408,123

$

680

47t,905

(7,500)

108,019

3t4,932
g 422,951

(604)

2,25t
(2,053)

(r92,909)

1,012,850

3,528

21,932

(1,741)

409,864



Special Revenue Irunds

Police

For'l-eit ure

Police

Outsidc

Details Ilecreal ion

lrrpact

Fees

Permanent

Fund Total

$ $ $ $$

l-ibrary

$

4.305

55. | 00

t.682.201

4s2

96,3t6
l3tt

$ r,900

6s6,962

t,830.27 5

1,966,0729,302 1.143.675 138,699

55,t00 1,682.653 96.454 t3,607 1,143,675 138,699 4,455,209

53,4 r0

5,933

r,539,870

9,22t

19,22s

3,349

1,723 5 r r,250

2,054,399

123,098

12,234

438,527

95.299 13,709

53,4 r 0 1,545,803 95.299 13,709 3 t,795 1,723 3,r39,508

t,690 I 36,850 I,155 (102) 1,11r,880 136,976 1,315,701

(873,285) (29,122) (910,5r r)

1,690

105,918

I 36,850

690,1 86

I,t55
t62,495

(r02)
'79,372

238,595

4,062,533

I 07,854

649,985

405, I 90

7,508,0 r 4

$ 107,608 $ 827,036 $ 163,650 579,270 $ 4,30r,r28 $7s7,839 57,913,204

See lndependent Auditor's Reporl.
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SCHEDULE 6

TOWN OF SALEM, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Conthining Schedule of Custodiol Funds Fiduciory Net Position

December3l,202I

Custodial Funds

Taxes

Trust

Funds

School

Inrpact Fees

Developer

Esclows

Motor Vehicle

Regist rat ions Total

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

I nt ergovernnrent al receivab les

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Intergovernmental p ay ables

School

NET POSITION
Restricted

$-
28.444.875

$ 249,570 $ 1,884,380 $ 890,6s3 $

28,444,875 249,570 1.884.380 890,653

$ 3.024,603

28.444,87 5

31.469.478

28.444,875 28.444,87 5

$ s 249,570 $ r,884,380 $ 890,653 $ $ 3,024,603

See Independent Auditor's Report
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SCHEDALE 7

TOII/N OF SALEM, NEII. HAMPSHIRE

Combining Scheilule of Custoilial Funils Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31,2021

Custodial Funds

Taxes

Trust

Funds

School

Impact Fees

Developer

Escrows

Motor Vehicle

Registrations

$

r,999,634

Total

Additions:

Investment eamings

Motor vehicle registration fees

Tax collections for other governments

Other

Total additions

Deductions:

Payments to other governments

Payments of motor vehicle fees to State

Payments for escrow purposes

Total deductions

Net increase (decrease) in fiduciary net position

Net position, beginning

Net position, ending

$ $33s$

349.3tr 354.104

$ 335

1,999,634

69,196,662

703,4rs

$

69,196,662

69,196.662 335 349,3tr 354,104 1,999,634 71

405,345

t,999,634

318,674

69,196,662 69,602,007

1,999,634

318,674

69,r96,662 405,345 318"674 1,999.634 '11,920,31s

335

249,235

(s6,034)

1,940,414

35,430

855,223

(20,269)

3.044,872

$ $ 249,s70 $ 1,884,380 $ 890,653 $ $ 3,024,603

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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INDEPENDENT AADITOR'S REPORTS AND
SINGLE AUDIT ACT SCHEDULES



Proozx & SaxunRSoN
P rofess ional Ass ociation/C ert ifi ed P ublic Acc ountants

tq3 Nofth Main Stree

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTEKNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Members of the Board of Selectmen and Town Manager
Town of Salem
Salem, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards

applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Stqndards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States, the financial statements of the govemmental activities, business-type activities, discretely presented component unit, each

major governmental and proprietary fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Town of Salem, as of and for the
year ended December 31,2027, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Town of Salem's

basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 14,2022.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Town of Salem's internal control over financial
reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Town of Salem's internal control. Accordingly, we do notexpress an opinion on the effectiveness of Town of Salem's internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the

normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A
material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility

that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and conected, on a timely
basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a

material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not

designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these

limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.

However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Town of Salem's financial statements are free from material

misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,

noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on

compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The

results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government

Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that

testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an

integral part of an audit perfomed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's intemal

control and compliance, Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose

st*/ A,
proSLx a

Q*, Qt*
December 14,2022
Concord, New Hampshire

SANDERSON
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Merrbers of the Board of Selectmen and Town Manager
Town of Salern

Salern, New Harrrpshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Etclt Mojor Federol Progrum

We have audited Town of Salem's compliance with the types of compliance requilernents identified as subject to audit in the
OMB Compliance Supplement Ihat could have a direct and material effect on each of the Town of Salern's major federal
prograrns for the year ended December 31,2021. Town of Salem's major federal prograrns are identified in the summary of
auditor's lesults section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, Town of Salem complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal prograrns for the year ended December 31,2021 .

Basis for Opinion on Enclt Major Federal Progrnnt

We conducted our audit of cornpliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Adntinistrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniforrn Guidance). Our responsibilities under
those standards and the Uniforrn Guidance are fufther described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.

We are required to be independent of Town of Salem and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant
ethical requirernents relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal prograrn. Our audit does not provide a legal detennination
of Town of Salem's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Resp o tts i b i I iti es of Mnnog e ment for C o mp I ianc e

Managernent is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, implernentation, and

maintetrance of effective intemal control over compliance with the requirernents of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and

provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to Town of Salem's federal programs.

Auditor's Respottsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our ob.lectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncornpliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above occurred, whether due to fi'aud or error, and express an opinion on Town of Salem's compliance based on our
audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assul'ance and therefore is not a guarantee that an

arrdit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Governntent Auditing Standards, and the Uniforrn
Guidance will always detect rnaterial noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting
fi'om fraud is higher than for that resulting frorn error, as fraud n.ray involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
tnisrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the corrpliance requirements referred to above is

considered rnaterial if there is a substantial likelihood that, individr.rally or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgrnent
rnade by a reasonable user of the repol't on cornpliance about Town of Salern's compliance with the requirelnents of each rnajor
f-ederal progralr as a whole.
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Town of Salem
Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Federul Program and Report on Internal Control
Over Compliance Required by tlte Uniform Guidsnce

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the

Uniform Guidance, we:

. Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Town of
Salem's compliance with the compliance requirements refered to above and performing such other procedures as we

considered necessary in the circumstances.

o Obtain an understanding of Town of Salem's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and repoft on internal control over compliance in

accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Town
of Salem's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we

identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,

noncompfiance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A mqterial weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a

reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be

prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A signiJicant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a

federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in intemal control over compliance, yet impoftant enough to merit

attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that

might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our

audit we did not identify any deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as

defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were

not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.

Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control

over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Unifonn Guidance. Accordingly, this repoft is
not suitabre for anv other purpose 

$4 r ftt Un

December 14,2022
Concord, New Hampshire

PLODZIK & SANDERSON
Professional Association
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SCHEDULE ]
TOWN OF SALEM, NE'I/ HAMPSH]RE

Schedule of Findings otttl Queslioned Cosls
For the Yenr Ended Decenrher 31,2021

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S I{ESULTS

Finnncitl Slnlemenls

Type of report the auditor issued on whether the flnancial statements audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP:
LJnrrodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

. Material weakness(es) identified?

. Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Noncornpliance rnaterial to financial statements noted?

Fetlerul Awaruls

Internal control over major federal programs:

o Material weakness(es) identified?

. Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditor's repoft issued on compliance for major federal programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be repofied in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

Identification of major federal progralns

Assistance Listing Number(s)

yes

yes

yes

Xno

X none reported

Xno

yes

yes X none reported

llnrnodified

noX

ves X no

Narne of Federal Prograrn or Cluster

20.205 Hishwav Plannins and Construction

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and

type B prograrns:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

$750,000

X yes no

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

NONE

SECTION III _ FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS

NONE
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SCHEDULE II
TO'YN OF SALEM, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Scherlale of Expendltures of Federal Awards
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31.2021

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through

Grantor/Program or Cluster Title

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING
AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT

Passed Throueh the New Hamoshire Derelonment Finance Authoritv

Community Development Block Grant/State's Program:

Millville Arms

Friendship Drive
PROGMMTOTAL

U.S, DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Passed Throush the New Denartment ofJustice

COVID-l9 - Coronavirus Emergency Supplemental Funding Program

Violence Against Women Formula Grants

U,S, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Passed Through the State ofNew Hampshire Department ofTransportation

Highway Planning and Construction:

NH Routes 28 & 97 Intersection Reconstruction "The Depot"

Rail Trail Phase VI
PROGRAMTOTAL

Passed Throueh the New Denartment of Safetv

State and Community Highway Safety:

DWI Patrols

Q4 NH Traflic Grants

Distracted Driving
SPEED
Lidar Unit and Radar Trailer

Join the Clique
Drive Sober or Get Pulled Over

PROGMMTOTAL

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY

Passed Through the State ofNew Hampshire

Governor's Oflice for Emergency Relief and Recovery (GOFERR)

COVID-19 - Coronavirus Relief Fund

COVID-I9 - Coronavirus Slate and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds

EXECUTryE OFFICE OF THE PRDSIDENT

Passed Through the Town of Scarborough, Maine

High Intensity Drug Trafficking Areas Program

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

Passed Throueh the New Hampshire Department ofSafety

COVID-19 - Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disasters)

DIRECT FUNDING

u.s. OT',IIISTICN

Equitable Sharing Program

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SNCIIRITY

Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER)

Total Expendilwes of Federal Awtrds

Federal

Assistance

Listing
Number

Pass-Through

Grantor's

Number

l9-201-CDHS-001

20-201-CDPF

2020-vD-BX-1209

2020-wF-AX-0021

12334

417s0

N/A

N/A

Provided to

Subrecipients

Total Federal

Expenditures

g 244,647

10,625

255.272

1,589

14.228

t4.228
$

t6.034

16.588

20.205

20.20s

7,860

2,583,207

38.721

2.621.928

20.600
20.600

20.600

20.600
20.600

20.600

20.600

#21-165

#21-165

#21-t65
#2t-t6s
#21-l6s
#21-l6s
#21-165

1,687

6,8s4

580

1,209

9,023

428

6,682
26,463

29,374

1,828

18 ),O'7

21.0t9

21.027

95.001 N/A

97.036 FEMA-4516-DR-NH

16.922 N/A

97.083

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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TOWN OF SALEM, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Note l. Bosis of Presentntiott

The accornpanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awar'ds (the "Schedule") includes the federal award activity of the

Town of Salertr under programs of the federal governurent for tlre year ended Decernber 31,2021. The inforrnation in this
Sclredule is presented in accordance with the requiretrents of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulation.s Part 200, Uni/brnr
Administrqtive Requirentents, Cost Principles, ancl Auclit Recluirentenls./br Federal Av,ards (Uniform Guidance). Because the

Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Town of Salem, it is not intended to and does not present the

financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Town of Salenr.

Note 2. Summnry of SigntJicant Accounting Policies

Expenditules repofted on the Schedule are reported on the rrodified accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are

recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reirnbursement. Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in
the norrnal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.

Note 3. Indirect Cost Rnte

The Town of Salem has elected not to use the lO-percent de minirnis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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